
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

January 28, 2019 
Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 

 Public comment will be permitted at the time the discussion of the agenda item marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable to 
public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only after 
each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

  Pg # Presenter 

    
1. Call to Order ...................................................................................................................  Mayor Root 

    

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda ...........................................................................  Mayor Root 

    

3. Approval of Minutes ………………………………………………………………………………………………….  Mayor Root 

 A. November 13, 2018 Town Council Workshop ........................................................... 
B. December 11, 2018 Town Council Special-Called Meeting ....................................... 
C. December 17, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting ................................................. 
D. December 21, 2018 Town Council Special-Called Meeting ....................................... 

1 
4 
6 

11 

 

    

4. Special Recognition: Chief Ron Davis .............................................................................  Mayor Root 

    

5. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………………………………………....  Mayor Root 

    

6. Consent Agenda ..............................................................................................................  Town Manager 

 A. Monthly Tax Report ................................................................................................... 13  

 B. Tax Releases / Refunds …………………………………………………………………………………………. 15  

 C. Approval of Employment Agreement for Town Attorney .......................................... 16  

 D. Budget Amendments: Police Department ................................................................. 21  

 E. Set Public Hearing for Code Amendments regarding Multi-Family Development .... 23  

 F. Adoption of FY 2019-2020 Budget Calendar .............................................................. 27  

    

7. Town Manager’s Report ................................................................................................. 29 Town Manager 

    

8. Discussion & Action Items   

 A. Update on Greenways Project * ................................................................................ 31 Doug Dearth 

 B. Update on July 4 Celebration and Budget Amendment * ……………………………………… 33 Town Manager 

 C. Community Center Project * …………………………………………………………………………………. 36 Town Manager 

 D. Personnel Policy Amendments: Holidays and Leave *............................................... 44 Town Mgr/Atty 

 E. Annexation/Zoning Map Amendment: Barkley Terrace * ......................................... 62 Town Attorney 

 F. Proposed Code Amendments: Public Nuisances * .................................................... 89 Town Attorney 

 G. Sale of Bus Garage * ...........................................................................................…….. 104 Town Attorney 

 H. Resolution Authorizing Town to Engage in Electronic Payments * ........................... 105 Finance Director 

 I. Quarterly Report – Finance ....................................................................................... 107 Finance Director 

 J. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update * ................................................................... 119 Planning Director 

 K. Quarterly Reports – Planning …......................................………………………………………… 121 Planning Director 

    

9. Closed Session ............................................................................................................................................... 

• N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11.a(3)  To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to 
preserve the attorney-client privilege between the attorney and the public body... 

• N.C.G.S. § 143-318.11.a(6)  To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, 
conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or 
prospective public officer or employee; 

 

    

10. Adjournment ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  Mayor Root 



 

 
Page 1 of 3  November 13, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, November 13, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special Called Meeting on Tuesday, November 13, 2018, at 
6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, 
Councilman Jeff McKenna, and Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill. Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons was absent. 
 
Staff present were: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment 
Supervisor Trent Duncan 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 

2. Discussion Items: 
A. Growth as it relates to Land Use issues, Economic Development, Annexation, and Water Allocations 

(Please see attached materials pertinent to these discussions) 
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson informed Town Council that the fact sheets attached are based on data from the 
American Community Survey and departmental data, Staff tried to get as close as possible on the population and 
growth estimates, however these are estimates and we won’t know how accurate they are until the 2020 Census 
results come out.  
 
Town Planner James Eller led Town Council in the discussion on growth as it relates to the Town of Weaverville. 
Since 2016, there have been over 310 dwelling units permitted, one project accounted for 168 units, but over the three 
year span approximately 50 single family homes annually. Mr. Eller mentioned that it is important to examine the 
difference between the zoning map and current land use map often to see where the non-conformities lie and if 
Council/staff want to change the zoning district to get better use on the ground. Vast majority of the Weaverville 
development has been residential in nature, with the exception of the multi-tenant commercial facility in Weaver 
Village and the Dollar Tree. There is a still a considerable amount of interest in the area for multi-family housing, but 
with the conditions set by Council on the water allocations as it pertains to annexation, developers are not willing to 
take that risk. Mr. Eller believes that this could lead to no growth on the periphery, so he asked if Council would like 
to revisit the situation.  
 
Mayor Root commented that he believes Council’s position on the terms of when projects should come into the Town 
is reasonable, if a couple years go by and no projects have been developed then Council might want to revisit their 
conditions.  

1



 

 
Page 2 of 3  November 13, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

Council discussed that they want the Town to grow, but don’t want it to be bad growth.  Plus, the pace of growth has 
been so rapid in the last few years that traffic congestion is getting worse, so stay at same position and see if growth 
continues.  
 
Town Planner Eller mentioned that if the Town chooses to grow, it is likely to be on the outward direction.  Staff 
hoped the difference in outside water rates would make up the difference in taxation like Council has brought up 
before; unfortunately the numbers don’t illustrate this (i.e. it is usually less expense to stay outside of Town limits and 
pay double water rates). Mr. Eller also noted that there may be some apprehension toward multi-family developments, 
but suggested any large commercial or mixed use growth will still have the same conditional zoning roadblock as it 
relates to water allocation and annexation.  
 
Councilman Nagle commented that without changing Town Council’s philosophy, is there a way to let developers 
know ahead of time the conditions. He posed the question of how the town could “pre-zone” with the ETJ. 
 
Town Attorney Jackson commented that the zoning districts would need to have more standards built into them, 
instead of defaulting to conditional zoning districts, which allow Council to legislate specifically to that project. 
However, if there were some uses added to the zoning districts, as permitted or permitted with standards, it would 
give the developer a more certainty as to what the regulations are, making them more comfortable.     
 
Council discussed possibly bringing the R-12 zoning district back to the Planning and Zoning Board for some 
standards or to create a punch list for developers to make it easier on the multifamily developments. But, the big 
concern is to not go back into the same situation as before where Council was litigating in front of the Zoning Board 
of Adjustments. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson commented that with Council approval, staff could work with the 
Planning and Zoning Board on the R-12 district to make some options for permitted with standards to be presented to 
Council.  
 
Town Planner James Eller asked Council what they saw as balanced residential economic development in 
Weaverville, since most of the single family homes are owned and more expensive for families than the multi-family 
residential projects.  
 
Council discussed that they want the Town to have more commercial growth and since there isn’t a lot of open land 
left for businesses, they need to decide on what type of businesses would come in and help the quality life in 
Weaverville stay successful because businesses don’t usually come in overnight.   
 
Town Planner Eller mentioned that all of the high density residential projects were approved by special-use permits 
by the Zoning Board of Adjustment, so it might be worthwhile for Council to consider creating a zoning district that 
would accommodate such a use, instead of projects always having to be approved as a conditional zoning district. 
Also, there has been no commercial growth in about a decade and the Town hasn’t received any applications in a 
quite some time. 
 
Town Attorney Jackson added that the zoning district or zoning map should be encouraging development that Council 
would like to have happen in Weaverville. If there are other uses that Council would like than rezoning can be used as 
a tool to guide development growth in the Town as they like.  
 
Mayor Root mentioned that it would be good to reach out to the community and see what types of retail aren’t being 
provided in Weaverville, and then try to encourage that retail to come here.  
 

2



 

 
Page 3 of 3  November 13, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

Council determined that with all the residential projects that have been completed, it is nice that residents have all the 
necessities within the downtown area.  Hopefully, the Town could create some great destinations for residents to be 
able to walk too, as well as making sure there are medical and retail services available. 
 
Planning and Zoning Board members mentioned that there will be growth in Weaverville, but need to start looking 
into other things that the Town needs like medical/office park or retirement center.  Also, it would be good to look at 
all of the undeveloped areas in and outside Town, imagine them at full capacity and see the effect on our water 
capacity. 
 
After all the discussion, Council determined that the Town is going to grow; they need to try to control it as much as 
possible, and encourage the kind of growth that is beneficial to the Town. Various commercial aspects that would be 
nice for the Town of Weaverville would be medical, healthcare, neighborhood commercial growth and technology 
businesses that are not big industrial enterprises. There is some openness to revisiting the R-12 district to provide 
some comfort to the developers and possibly looking into high density single family homes. 
 

3. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 7:28 p.m. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk  

3



 

 
Page 1 of 2  December 11 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, December 11, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special Called Meeting on Tuesday, December 11, 2018, at 
6:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, 
Councilman Jeff McKenna, and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons. Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill was absent. 
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, Town 
Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier and Public Works Director Dale Pennell. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 

2. Presentation on Asheville on Bikes 
Councilman McKenna introduced Clark Mackey, co-owner of CAKE websites and Asheville on Bikes Board 
Chairman, and thanked him for coming tonight to present Asheville on Bikes with Council.  
 
Clark Mackey presented to Council the high demand for bicycling in Western North Carolina and that many of the 
popular bicycle routes in the area lead up to or around the Town of Weaverville. This makes Weaverville a very hot 
commodity for bicyclists, and with over $43 million generated each year on bicycle tourism, a good opportunity for 
the Town to increase its revenue and tax base. There are so many types of bicyclists around the area like the road and 
gravel bicyclists, cargo and family bicyclists, urban bicyclists, mountain biking and bike packing, so being that it is 
not just a single demographic makes it even more favorable. Mr. Mackey mentioned that Weaverville doesn’t have to 
invest a lot, since the bicyclists are already coming this way. However, building amenities like protected bikes lanes, 
greenway connections to neighborhoods, bike racks and bike repair stations would increase the bike riders traffic and 
keep the small town charm. If positioned correctly leading towards the downtown, it could lead to more revenue for 
businesses as well.  Mr. Mackey believes this would be a great opportunity for the Town of Weaverville and thanked 
them for their time.  
 

3. Community Center Project 
A. Commercial Kitchen 

Council held discussion on the commercial kitchen and determined that it would be best to not have it included in 
the new community center project.  Council agreed that the maintenance and cost of a commercial kitchen would 
be too high and the main use would be for storing and reheating food. Council discussed the possibility of having 
a recreational room inside the community center, instead of having all the rooms for business/conference 
meetings and weddings. Manager Coffey agreed to bring back cost estimates to upfit the rooms to double as 
meeting rooms and multi-sports rooms (i.e. pickleball, etc.). 
 

4



 

 
Page 2 of 2  December 11 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

B. Dry Ridge Museum 
Next, Council held discussion on the Dry Ridge Museum and determined that there would need to be space for an 
exhibit in the new community center. The best place for the Dry Ridge Museum would be within the community 
center and it would need to be self-sustaining with no employees.  Council also mentioned to reaching out to the 
library about the museum and the demand for their community room. 
 

C. Outdoor Space 
Council determined that the outdoor space at Lake Louise would be used for recreational activities.  There is a lot 
of usable land for a tennis/basketball court, bike skills park, or pickle ball court. They want to make sure that the 
space is definitely going to be used and that it doesn’t get over looked or placed on the back burner. 
 
After all the discussion, Council determined that the commercial kitchen wasn’t a big necessity and there needs to 
be space for an exhibit for the museum. Staff was asked to reach out to the architect to create other drawings 
reflecting these changes, and to see if indoor recreational opportunities could be inside community center.  
Council asked staff to try and reach out to other Towns that have built new community centers recently and see 
the process that they went through and how they like it.  
 

4. Adjournment 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 7:30 p.m. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk  

5



 

 
Page 1 of 5  December 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 
Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 
State of North Carolina Monday, December 17, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, December 17, 2018, at 
7:00 p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 
Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  
 
Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police 
Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water 
Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 
Mayor Root asked to move Consent Agenda item K, Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request for Barkley 
Terrace Subdivision, to the first item under the Discussion/Action items.  
Councilman Nagle made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. Vice Mayor/Councilman 
Jackson seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to approve the minutes from October10, 2018 Town Council Special Called 
Meeting and November 19, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting as presented. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson 
seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 
 

4. Special Recognitions 
Mayor Root recognized Police Chief Alan Wyatt for all his hard work and dedication to the Town of Weaverville. 
Chief Wyatt served in various roles within the Weaverville Police Department and will greatly be missed. We wish 
him the best in his retirement.  Mayor Root reminded everyone that there is a retirement reception for Chief Wyatt at 
the Town Hall on Friday, December 21 at 3pm. 
 

5. General Public Comment 
Mayor Root noted Town Council is going to bring back the ability, on certain agenda items, to comment during the 
discussion of respective items on the agenda beginning with the January 2019 council meeting.  
 
Public comments were received as follows:  
Alan Sheppard, thanked Chief Wyatt for his service as well and mentioned that as for public comment, it was for the 
sale of the bus garage. He commented that no one in Town was aware of what went down on the sale of the bus 
garage, whether it was sold or not. Plus, now there are contingencies on it and the buyer was allowed more time to 
decline the offer if he wanted, which other bidders weren’t aware of.   

6



 

 
Page 2 of 5  December 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

 
6. Consent Agenda 

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Nagle seconded the 
motion and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda.  
 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only 
B. Tax Releases/Refunds- Approved tax refund of the personal property of North Carolina RSA #4 Inc., DBA US 

Cellular valued at $18,755, so that $78.77 can be released from the 2014 tax levy. 
C. Award of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring Police Chief - Upon payment of $1.00 (provided by Town 

Manager Selena Coffey), Police Chief Alan Wyatt was awarded his badge and service firearm. 
D. Budget Amendment: Cops for Kids Program - Approval of Budget Amendment 
E. Appointment to MSD Board - Appointed Earl Valois to serve as the Town’s representative on the Metropolitan 

Sewerage District (MSD) Board for a regular 3 year term beginning in January of 2019 
F. Town of Weaverville 2019 Holiday Schedule – Approved the 2019 holiday schedule as presented. 
G. Town Council 2019 Meeting Schedule – Approved the 2019 meeting schedule as presented. 
H. Award of Contract for Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition System (SCADA) – Approved the proposal 

submitted by Carolina Technical Services, Inc. in the amount of $58,327.00 and the contract for the SCADA 
system at the Town’s water treatment plant to Carolina Technical Services, Inc. on that basis.  

I. Approvals of Local Water Supply Plan & Water Shortage Response Plan – Adopted the Resolution 
Approving the Local Water Supply Plan and the Resolution Approving the Water Shortage Response Plan as 
presented and directing the Water Treatment Plant Superintendent to forward copies of the adopted, resolutions 
and plans to the Department of Environmental Quality. 

J. Acceptance of Old Dry Ridge Circle Public Street Dedication – Accepted the dedication of Old Dry Ridge 
Circle as a Town street so that it can be included in the Town’s street system and authorize the recording of the 
attached deed for conveyance of the road and road right-of-way to the Town upon the delivery of a $5,000 repair 
bond to be held for three years.  
 

7. Town Manager’s Report 
Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including an update on the recruitment of a 
new Police Chief. There were 40 applications received which were screened down to 11 for phone interviews. After 
the phone interviews, there were 4 candidates brought in for a full day assessment center that included a panel 
interview, written exercise, oral presentation, and job simulation.  She has offered the position to an individual and 
they have accepted, but the name cannot be announced until the new Chief has the opportunity to give notice to their 
current employer; Recognized Public Works Director Dale Pennell and the Public Works staff for refurbishing all 32 
snowflake lights. In doing so, their ingenuity is saving energy and the Town thousands of dollars in replacements; 
there is a retirement reception for Police Chief Alan Wyatt on Friday, December 21 at Town Hall from 3 pm -5 pm; 
and lastly, the County school system got in touch with Chief Williams and told him that they could not approve 
staging the fireworks at the Weaverville Primary baseball field due to their insurance. Manager Coffey noted that she 
is continuing to work towards this goal of having the fireworks downtown and would update Council on her progress 
at the next meeting. 
 

8. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request for Barkley Terrace Subdivision 
Town Attorney Jackson mentioned to Town Council that an Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request have 
been received for the project known as Barkley Terrace Subdivision on Wheeler Road. Town Council approved a 
water allocation several years ago, upon the condition that they annex in to the Town of Weaverville. The water 
infrastructure has been constructed and they now are coming forward with their annexation petition. At this time, it is 
appropriate under statute that Town Council adopts a resolution instructing the Town Clerk to investigate the 
sufficiency of the petition. This means the Clerk will check to make sure that all property owners signed the petition 
and that all requirements for satellite annexation can be met. This should be completed and brought back to Council at 
next meeting.  

7



 

 
Page 3 of 5  December 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

In addition to the petition, there was an initial zoning request received for R-2 zoning.  It is appropriate to try and keep 
the zoning track together with the petition and for Town Council to send the zoning request to the Planning and 
Zoning Board for review and recommendation.  There is a resolution drafted in the packet for Town Councils 
approval. Town Attorney Jackson understands that Council may have some concerns and there will be public hearings 
on both the annexation petition and the zoning request.  The developer has gotten approvals from Buncombe County 
and is asking for vested rights under conditional use permit which was approved by Buncombe County.  
 
Council discussed the water allocation terms and extensions, the development inconsistencies under Town zoning 
code, vested rights, and annexations.  

Councilman Nagle made a motion to adopt the proposed resolution concerning the annexation petition for the 
subdivision known as Barkley Terrace. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a 
unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

 
B. Proposed Code Amendments to Chapter 2 and 20: Planning Board 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson commented that considering the workload the Planning and Zoning Board is 
experiencing right now, staff recommends that the Town’s Code provisions concerning the establishment and 
membership of the Planning and Zoning Board be changed to allow up to 2 alternate members and to increase the 
terms to 3 years instead of 2 years. Town Attorney Jackson also noted that the establishment of the Town’s various 
boards has been scattered throughout the chapters of the Code instead of being consolidated within the Boards, 
Commissions, and Committees section (Chapter 2 Article IV). Therefore it is recommended that the Planning and 
Zoning Board establishment be moved to the Boards, Commissions, and Committees section of the Code in order to 
provide more organized and efficient Code of Ordinances.  

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt the Ordinance Amending Weaverville Town Code Chapters 
2 and 20 concerning the Planning and Zoning Board. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion. The motion passed 
by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
C. Board Appointments: Planning and Zoning Board 
Mayor Root recommends that the term of Steve Warren be extended to September 2021 to stagger the terms on a 3-
year term basis and that Tom Balestrieri be appointed to the Planning and Zoning Board as an alternate member.  

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion that Tom Balestrieri be appointed to the Planning and Zoning Board 
as an alternate member for a term to expire in September 2021 and that the term of Steve Warren be extended to 
September 2021 in order to provide for staggered 3-year terms. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion. The 
motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
D. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 
Town Planner James Eller informed Town Council that before them tonight for their consideration is an annexation 
analysis, a future land use map and municipal borders map.  Mr. Eller noted that in regards to involuntary annexation, 
the General Assembly has made it almost impossible to accomplish them now. As for voluntary annexations, they 
remain fairly untouched with the same process. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson added that the Infographic Fact Sheet 
before Town Council was created from the demographic data and placed in a format that will be beneficial to them 
and the Town. 
 
Mayor Root asked how we were going forward with the Comprehensive Land Use plan update and how it was 
playing out in the upcoming months.Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that the next steps will be to create a draft; 
staff continues to update and get input from the Planning and Zoning Board, and now they need to start outlining a 
public input process that will be before Town Council.  
 
 

8



 

 
Page 4 of 5  December 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

E. Sale of Bus Garage 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned to Town Council that whether the bus garage was sold or not, the termite 
issue had to be addressed. That issue has been completed, and now the Town found out that the highest bidder’s bank 
appraisal didn’t come in high enough for them to make the $367,550 purchase price work, so opted out of the 
contract. This mean that we will be starting the process over again with a new contract.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson reminded Town Council that the last set of offer advertisement upset bid that was 
approved was a contract that had a due diligence period allowing the potential buyer to do as many inspections as they 
wanted and have an opt-out date.  On the last day of the examination period, the bank appraisal came in too low for 
them to go forward with the project so they withdrew the offer.  Since then they have comeback in with a brand new 
contract. Under the statute this is a negotiated offer, which can be advertised for a 10 day upset bid period. This 
process will continue until there are no more qualifying bids coming in. Once a final bid is submitted, it comes before 
Town Council for approval or rejection. Town Council has before them an initial offer that they can propose to accept 
and authorizing the advertisement of the offer and upset bid period.  
 
Resident Alan Sheppard was permitted to comment and noted that he had never seen property sold like this before and 
tried to get a contract from the realtor, but wasn’t able to obtain one so didn’t know there was a due diligence period. 
He was informed that he could make a bid or not. Secondly, he asked if there was anything found during due 
diligence by the proposed buyer after the offer was withdrawn. Mayor Root and the Town Attorney briefly 
commented on the differences between an auction style bidding process that is typically down on the courthouse steps 
and the process that the Town is using where it has a contract in hand and seeks upset bids in order to try to get the 
best price for the property. 
 
Mayor Root asked Town Attorney to amend the contract, so that any and all inspections during due diligence becomes 
sellers property. Council also discussed which date to publish the advertisement of offer due to the holidays and 
decided on Thursday, December 27, 2018. 
 
Councilman Fitzsimmons made a motion to propose to accept the offer with the condition that all inspections, reports 
and cost estimates concerning the property be made public record and directed the Town Clerk to advertise a notice 
of offer, and seek additional offers through the upset bid period. Councilman Nagle seconded the motion. The motion 
passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 
F. Update on USDA Loan for Water Line Extension Project  
Town Manager Selena Coffey gave Town Council an update on the USDA Loan for the Water Line Extension 
project. Two issues came about during the USDA loan preliminary review for our application; 1) The Town has 
extensive cash in cash reserves and will have to use $170,600 of Town funds towards the project, and 2) they are 
anticipating that after January 1, 2019, interest rates will increase from 4% to 4.25%. She would like Town Council to 
hold a Special Called meeting on Friday, December 21 at 2:30 pm so that Pam Hysong, USDA representative, can be 
at the meeting to present the loan documents, letter of commitment, and all documents required for Mayor signature.  
Town Manager Coffey recommended that Council approve the payment of $170,600 from Town funds and schedule a 
special-called meeting for December 21, 2018 at 2:30pm. 
 
Councilman Nagle made a motion to approve the requirement by the USDA for the Town to use $170,600 of Town 
funds on the Waterline Extension Project and for the  Mayor to call a Special Called meeting on December 21 at 2:30 
pm at Town Hall. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. 
Motion carries 5-0. 
 
 
 

9



 

 
Page 5 of 5  December 17, 2018  
  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

G. Public Works & Water Resources Quarterly Reports 
Public Works Director Dale Pennell discussed the Public Works and Water Resources Quarterly Report for 
September – November 2018. He mentioned that he was very proud of the public works department for their hard 
work over the snowstorm weekend. They worked around the clock to help clean and salt the roads. Due to the 
snowstorm, they are extending the leaf pickup from December 15 to January 31. As for water resources, Mr. Pennell 
noted that the Town hasn’t committed any water since June and with the transition from commitment phase to the 
built phase, so the Town’s capacity is not quite as worrisome now.  The Town is also cooperating with the NC 
Wildlife Resources Commission on a program called a Community Fishing Program, which is an agreement between 
the Town and the Wildlife for the US Wildlife Service to come and restock the lake with fish.  

Mayor Root thanked the Public Works, Fire and Police Department for all their hard work in making the Weaverville 
Parade and Candlelight Stroll a big success.  

9. Closed Session 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) 
to consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege 
between the attorney and public body, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(5) to establish or instruct staff concerning the 
position to be taken by or on behalf of the public body in negotiating, and N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(6) to 
consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of 
employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge or grievance. Councilman 
Fitzsimmons seconded the motion and by a unanimous vote Council entered into closed session. 

 
[CLOSED SESSION] 

 
Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to exit closed session. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson seconded and all 
voted unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 

10. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and all voted to 
adjourn the Council’s meeting at 10:05 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

10



 

 
Page 1 of 2  December 21, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

                       
                        MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Friday, December 21, 2018 
 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a Special Called Meeting on Friday, December 21, 2018, at 2:30 
p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 
 
Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, 
and Councilman Jeff McKenna. Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Andrew Nagle were absent. 
 
Staff present were: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water Treatment 
Supervisor Trent Duncan. 
 
1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 2:32 p.m. 
 

2. USDA Loan for Waterline Extension Project 
Town Manager Selena Coffey led the discussion stating the for the meeting is for our USDA/Rural Development 
Regional Representative, Pam Hysong, to present the loan terms that USDA is offering on the Waterline Extension 
Project and seek Town Council’s acceptance on the loan. 
 
Pam Hysong thanked Town Council for holding this special-called meeting and mentioned that the main reason for 
the meeting today is because interest rates are increasing January 1, 2019. The increase would raise the Town’s 
payments by about $6,000 a year and with the pending shutdown, today is the last day to complete this application. 
Going forward the Town will have to complete an obligation of funds and in order to obligate, the application, 
engineering services and environmental assessments have to be approved. Council would then have to vote on and 
accept three documents today: 1) Resolution Concerning USDA Loan on the Waterline Extension Project, 2) Letter of 
Conditions, and 3) Loan Resolution. 
 
Town Manager Coffey noted that both she and the Town Attorney have reviewed the documents and have given the 
information to Town Council for their approval and the Mayor’s signature. She asked Ms. Hysong to highlight the key 
parts of the documents. 
 
Some highlights that Pam Hysong covered from the document were that if there are any major changes or the scope of 
the project changes the Town would have to get approval first. Once the form is signed and sent to Raleigh it is safe to 
say the funds are held for the project. The total loan amount is $2.8 million with an interest rate of 4%, and the total 
project cost is $2,970,600 with the Town funding $170,600. The repayments of the loan are annual payments over a 
40 year term loan, and as security they will have revenue bonds in the amount of $2.8 million. Also, they require a 
pre-authorized debit, so that when the payment is due they can process it by pulling the payment out of the Town’s 
account electronically.  The Town will have to have a construction account to handle the funds for construction, and 

11



 

 
Page 2 of 2  December 21, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting 
 

the federal funds would have to be used first and then the finance funds next. There is a reserve requirement for the 
bonds each year of 10% for 10 years until there is a full interest free payment and a short lived asset reserve. She 
noted that by accepting the Letter of Conditions, Council is accepting the Loan Resolution, the Equal Opportunity 
Agreement, and Assurance Agreement. The project has to be completed and funds dispersed within three years of the 
obligation date. If there are excess funds they can be used on the project, if not they will be de-obligated. The fidelity 
bond payments will have to insured equal to the annual payment, which is estimated to be at $141,484.  The Town 
will need to have a vulnerability assessment and emergency response plan on the project. The final condition is have 
to be in compliance with State, Federal, and Local laws, pollution control, age discrimination act, and development 
standards.  
 
Councilman Jackson asked for clarification on what service area meant under Loan Resolution, since it states the 
Town is required to give water to applicants in the service area. He just wants to make sure it doesn’t change 
Council’s existing position on water allocations. Pam Hysong clarified that this doesn’t mean the Town has to take in 
big subdivisions, it simply means that in normal business if the applicant meets all the rules and regulations 
requirement, then they can’t be denied on discrimination. Town Manager Selena Coffey commented that this is more 
of an Equal Opportunity position, and Council will still have the ability to decide on water allocations, but the Town 
can’t discriminate on who gets approved for water. 
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson asked about the graduation provision, since it doesn’t seem like a call provision 
where they can call the loan due for any reason. Pam Hysong mentioned that the refinancing would have to be 
affordable and if the USDA ever made a decision that the Town didn’t agree with they can always appeal it. She has 
never seen a graduation provision go to appeal before. 
 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to adopt both resolutions as presented and to accept the conditions 
of the loan. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion 
carries 5-0 
 

3. Adjournment 
Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn 
the Council’s meeting at 3:00 p.m. 

 
__________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk  

12



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of           
January 22, 2019. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

13



AS OF 1/22/2019
Real Property: 750,820,030        
Real Property Discoveries: 1,279,000             

Total Real Property:  752,099,030        
Personal: 54,787,228           
Personal Discoveries: 28,588,695           

Total Personal: 83,375,923           
Public Utilities: 4,952,725             
Exemption: (10,663,470)         
Releases: (1,056,906)           
Total Tax Value 828,707,302        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,857,976             
Personal Property: 316,829                
Public Utilities: 18,820                  
Less Under $5 Adjustment (57)                         
Total Public Utilities: 18,763                  
Exemption: (40,521)                 
Releases: (4,016)                   
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,149,030             

Total Current Year Collections 2,982,792.94
% Collected 94.72%

Total Left to be Collected: 166,237                

Prior Years Paid 16

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

14



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019   

SUBJECT: Tax Release/Refund 

PRESENTER:   Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve a partial tax release and related refund for the 2018 real 
property taxes on property owned by Stanwood Nutter at 12 Perrion Court which bears 
Buncombe County PIN 9743-40-5270.  This release and refund is due to error in the 
valuation. The original valuation was for $495,300, however Buncombe County has 
corrected the value to $423,700, resulting in $71,600 in value that should be released. The 
taxes for this property have been fully paid, so the amount of $272.08 needs to be refunded. 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action could be in 
the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the tax release of $71,600 from the value of the real property 
located at 12 Perrion Court owned by Stanwood Nutter (PIN 9743-40-5270), and 
authorize the refund of $272.08 to the property owner. 

15



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019  

SUBJECT: Approval of Employment Agreement for Town Attorney 

PRESENTER:  Mayor 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Employment Agreement 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The attached employment agreement has been drafted based upon the agreed upon 
conditions of employment for the Town Attorney as discussed in connection with 
her review on December 17, 2018.  

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

The Mayor recommends that the attached employment agreement be approved by 
Town Council.   

I move that the employment agreement for the Town Attorney be approved. 

16



 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made this ______ day of January, 2019, between the TOWN OF 
WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA (the “Town”) and JENNIFER O. JACKSON (“Jackson” 
or “Town Attorney”); 
 
 WHEREAS, NCGS 160A-173 provides that a town must appoint an attorney to serve 
at its pleasure and to be its legal adviser; 
 
 WHEREAS, on May 16, 2016, Weaverville Town Council took action to appoint 
Jackson to be its Town Attorney and Jackson has served in such capacity since that time;  
 

WHEREAS, Town Council and Jackson wish to continue Jackson’s appointment as 
Town Attorney under the terms and conditions as expressed in this Agreement; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements 

contained in this agreement, the Town and Town Attorney agree as follows: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES  – 
 

a. The Town hereby appoints and employs Jackson as the Town Attorney for 
the Town of Weaverville to perform the functions and duties specified in 
NCGS 160A-173, the Town’s Charter and Code of Ordinances, and such other 
legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the Town Council shall 
from time to time assign. 
 

b. The Town Attorney shall provide legal services to the Town of Weaverville, 
its Mayor and Town Council, Town Manager, Town Planning and Zoning 
Board, Town Board of Adjustment, and other employees and board and 
committees as requested by the Mayor or Town Manager. Conflicts with this 
representation shall immediately be brought to the attention of the Mayor 
and Town Manager. 

 
c. Expressly excluded from Jackson’s scope of appointment and employment is 

bond work that should reasonably be performed by bond counsel and 
litigation unless specifically agreed to by Jackson. 
 

d. The Town Attorney shall devote approximately 30 hours of time each week 
to the performance of her duties. Except as provided in this agreement, 
Jackson shall not perform any additional legal services or represent any 
other client, whether for remuneration or pro bono, without the approval of 
Town Council. It is expressly understood and agreed that Jackson can 
continue to represent the City of Marion and the Weaverville ABC Board as 
long as such representation does not conflict with or unduly interfere with 
representation of the Town of Weaverville.   

 

17



 
e. The Town Attorney shall strictly observe the Rules of Professional Conduct 

both during employment and during and after termination.  
 

2. ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP – Any communication between the Town and 
Town Attorney is presumed to be confidential. 
 

3. EMPLOYMENT STATUS – Jackson is employed as a part-time exempt employee of 
the Town with benefits limited to those expressly provided in this Agreement, 
required by law, or specifically approved by action of Town Council.  

 
4. TERM – This Agreement is for an indefinite period and shall continue until such 

time as either party may terminate this Agreement as provided herein.  
 

5. TERMINATION – 
 

a. The Town of Weaverville, through action of Town Council, may terminate the 
appointment and/or employment of the Town Attorney at any time and for 
any or no reason by notifying the Town Attorney in writing. 

b.  The Town Attorney has the right to terminate her representation of the 
Town of Weaverville at any time and to withdraw from representation in any 
manner and for any reason as long as the Rules of Professional Conduct are 
observed. While it is not necessary to state a reason for withdrawal from 
representation, the following conduct or circumstances may cause Jackson to 
consider termination:  nonpayment of salary of other stated benefits, 
misrepresentation or failure to disclose material facts, significant action 
contrary to the Town Attorney’s advice, conflicts of interest, attorney ethical 
obligations, personal conflict or disagreement and refusal to cooperate, 
breach of trust.  

c. If Jackson’s representation of the Town is terminated, any amounts owed to 
her for work previously performed remain due and payable. The Town also 
agrees to pay a reasonable fee for any time spent on the Town’s matters at 
the request of the Town after the date of termination based upon the hours 
devoted by Jackson in performing those requested or required services. 

d. At the conclusion of the representation, the Town Attorney must take 
measures to close the Town’s files. These measures may include maintaining 
a hard or digital copy of the Town’s files for Jackson’s records. The Town’s 
files will be kept confidential in accordance with applicable Rules of 
Professional Conduct at all times. Once these file closure measures are taken, 
the Town Attorney will seek direction from the Town concerning the 
handling and transfer of the files. 

 
6. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS – The only compensation and benefits that the 

Town Attorney is eligible for are as provided in this Agreement.  
 

a. The Town Attorney shall be provided a gross annual salary of $60,000 which 
shall be paid bi-weekly with regular payroll. 

18



 
b. Up to $5,000 shall be provided to or for the benefit of the Town Attorney 

with such amount to be used for the Town’s required contributions to 
Jackson’s Local Government Retirement System (LGRS) account and 
professional dues and subscriptions such as the NC State Bar, NC Bar 
Association and Buncombe County Bar Association, continuing legal 
education (and related travel) on municipal law topics, publications related 
to municipal law. 

It is noted that LGRS requires a minimum of five (5) years participation with 
LGRS before an employee is vested and entitled to receive the Town’s 
contribution to a retirement account. In the event that the Town discontinues 
Jackson’s employment prior to her becoming vested in LGRS, the Town 
agrees that an amount equal to the Town’s contributions to Jackson’s 
retirement account will be paid out directly to Jackson so that she receives 
the negotiated benefit without forcing a contractual relationship.  

c. The Town Attorney shall be provided up to 18 days of leave with pay. 

d. The Town Attorney is eligible to participate in the Town’s 457 Plan but such 
contributions are to be unmatched by Town funds. 

e. The Town Attorney shall be eligible to receive any other one-time or 
recurring benefit provided to her by action of Town Council.  

f. The Town Attorney is not entitled to receive any bonuses, leave, cost of living 
adjustment, or merit increase or bonus provided to or paid in accordance 
with policies that are established for other Town employees.  

7. CONTINUING LEGAL EDUCATION –  Jackson agrees that the majority of her 
continuing legal education  and coursework will be focused on municipal law and 
related topics. The Town agrees to cover the expense of the Town Attorney’s 
attendance of at least one North Carolina Municipal Attorney conference each year 
with such payment being in addition to any compensation or benefits owed to the 
Town Attorney. 
 

8. NON-GUARANTEE – It is hereby acknowledged that Jackson has not made any 
guarantee or promise of any kind concerning the outcome or results of any matter 
or any decisions by any court or administrative body. 
 

9. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION – The Town shall review and evaluate the 
performance of the Town Attorney at least once annually. Said review and 
evaluation shall be in accordance with specific criteria developed jointly by the 
Town Council and the Town Attorney.  Annually the Town Council and Town 
Attorney shall define such goals and objections which they determine necessary for 
the proper operation of the Town and in the attainment of the Town’s policy 
objectives, with priorities among such goals and objectives being noted.  
 

10. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION – The Town agrees to maintain such 
insurance policies and/or riders that will provide coverage for errors and omissions 
in the Town Attorney’s provision of her duties. To the extent provided by law, the 
Town shall defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the Town Attorney against any 
tort, professional liability claim or demand or other legal action, whether groundless 

19



 
or otherwise, arising out of an alleged act or omission occurring in the performance 
of her duties as Town Attorney. The Town will compromise and settle any such 
claim or suit or pay the amount of any settlement or judgment rendered by a court 
of law thereon.  

 
11. EFFECTIVE DATE – This Agreement shall be retroactively effective to January 1, 

2019. 
 

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS –  
 

a. The text of this Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties. 
 

b. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 
unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, 
or portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected and shall 
remain in full force and effect.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town of Weaverville has caused this Agreement to be 

signed and executed on its behalf by its Mayor, and attested by its Town Clerk, and the 
Town Attorney has signed and executed this Agreement. 

 
 

        
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
 
        
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
        
JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney     

 
 
 
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner  
required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
        
TONYA DOZIER, Finance Officer 
 
 
Z:\Administration\Human Resources\Personnel Files\Jackson, Jennifer\Jackson, Jennifer - Town Attorney Contract - January 2019.docx 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 28, 2019 

Subject: Budget Amendment – Police Department  

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Budget Amendment Form  

 

Description/Summary of Request: 

The unexpected retirement of the Town’s Police Chief on 1/1/19 resulted in a few 

expenditures that are not in the current year’s budget, including payment for the Law 

Enforcement Special Separation Allowance, and accrued vacation payout.   The attached 

Budget Amendment form details the expenditure accounts, and funds the amount needed 

through Appropriated Fund Balance.   

In addition, a budget amendment is needed to record proceeds of $1,328 received from the 

state for Unauthorized Substance Tax, which is an excise tax imposed on controlled 

substances.  A portion of the tax collected by the state is shared with the local law 

enforcement agency that conducted the investigation.  

 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 

 

 

21



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-430-431-12100  Police - Salaries & Wages  $17,615.22 
010-430-431-18200  Police - Retirement  $1,497.29 
010-430-431-12500  Police - Separation Allowance  $7,681.44 
010-430-431-18100  Police - FICA  $1,935.19 
010-430-431-18210  Police - 401(K) Match  $1,056.91 
010-430-431-50100  Police - Small Equipment  $1,328.13 

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-004-310-09900  Appropriated Fund Balance                      $29,786.05 
010-004-300-09019  State Distribution - Police                         $1,328.13   
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.  (1) Police Chief 
Retirement on 1/1/2019 and associated Separation Allowance and accrued vacation payout.  
(2) Unauthorized Substance Tax received from the State on 11/21/18. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

22



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, January 28, 2019 

Subject: Zoning Text Amendment Related to the Method by which 
Multifamily Residential Uses are Permitted within the R-12 
Zoning District and Additional Standards Related to Same.  

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Proposed Revisions of Code 

Description: 

Over the previous two months staff has been working in conjunction with the Planning and 
Zoning Board to examine the method via which multifamily residential uses are permitted 
within the R-12 zoning district. In short language has been prepared to shift multifamily 
residential uses at a certain density from conditional zoning districts to permitted with 
standards. Said additional standards have been crafted and are attached hereto and a 
recommendation adopted by a unanimous vote of the Planning and Zoning Board will be 
available for the public hearing related to same.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, February 
25, 2019 at 6:45pm, or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the aforementioned 
revision of Code. 

 

 

23



 

Proposed Code Amendments to Chapter 36 
Recommended by the Planning and Zoning Board 

(Text highlighted in red reflects the recommended amendments) 
 

Definition (within Sec. 36-5): 
 
Dwelling - Multifamily (more than four units/building). A building containing more than four residential 
dwelling units. Each unit has a separate entrance from the outside or through a common vestibule. 
These structures may include apartments, townhouses and condos. 
 
 
Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 units/building), permitted with standards in R-3, R-12 as shown 
on the Table of Uses (Sec. 36-105): 
 
Sec. 36-105. - Table of uses.  

USES  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

Residential  

Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 units/building)  -  -  
C  

PS 

C  

PS 
-  -  -  

 
 
Additional Standards (Article V, Secs. 36-116, 36-139): 
 
Sec. 36-116. - Intent. 

This article sets forth standards for those uses that have been identified as "permitted with standards" 
in the Table of Uses set forth in section 36-104. All generally applicable regulations (including but not 
limited to sidewalks, traffic analysis, street lighting, off-street parking and loading, etc.) shall apply to the 
uses set out in the sections of this Article unless provided otherwise by the specific provisions within this 
Article.  

 

24



 
Section 36-139.  Dwelling - Multifamily (more than 4 units/building) 
 

(a) Street Lighting requirements made necessary by Sec. 36-26 are fully applicable to the use of 
Dwelling – Multifamily (more than 4 units/building) as defined in Sec. 36-5 except that such 
requirements are hereby modified to provide the following: 

 
(1) All lighting on the property shall be mounted on posts no more than 16 feet tall.  
(2) Blocking, shielding and aiming of all exterior lighting shall be used to minimize light 

trespass on to adjoining residential properties.  
(3) The exterior lighting plan shall be subject to review and approval by the Town's Zoning 

Administrator prior to installation. 
 

(b) All containment devices for trash and recyclables (including but not limited to compactors, 
dumpsters, roll-out bins, and areas for storing cardboard) shall be placed in the side or rear 
yards only and located and designed so as not to be visible from the view of adjacent streets and 
properties. All containment areas shall meet the following standards:  
 

(1) All containment areas shall be enclosed to contain windblown litter.  
(2) Enclosures shall be at least as high as the highest point of the compactor or dumpster.  
(3) Enclosures shall be made of materials that are opaque at the time of installation (such 

as a fence, wall, or mature opaque vegetation) and compatible with and/or similar to 
the design and materials of the principal building.  

(4) Compactors and dumpsters shall be placed on a concrete pad that is large enough to 
provide adequate support and allow for positive drainage, and conform to the 
Buncombe County Health Department regulations governing compactor pads. A 
concrete apron shall also extend from the pad for support and access.  

(5) Enclosures shall contain gates to allow for access and security.  
(6) Dumpsters and compactors shall be located within the side or rear yard behind buildings 

and away from sidewalks or pedestrian circulation. Such locations should be accessible 
to service vehicles.  

(7) Enclosures shall be landscaped in accordance with Article VI of Chapter 36. 
 

(c) Maximum Number of Units per Building - No more than 24 units per building are permitted.  

 

 

 

  

25



 

 
Buffering Requirements as shown on Table of Dimensional Requirements (Sec. 36-106): 
 
Sec. 36-106. - Table of dimensional requirements.  

Zoning District  R-1  R-2  R-3  R-12  C-1  C-2  I-1  

Minimum Lot Area (sq. Ft.)  
10,000 

2,7  
7,500 1, 

2,3,4,7  
5,445 
1,2,3,4,7  

7,500 4,7, 8  0  0  0  

Minimum Lot Width(ft.)  100  75  75  75  0  50  0  

Minimum Front Yard (ft.)  30  30  30  30  0  0  0  

Major Thoroughfare  30  30  30  30 5  0  60  
35 

5  

Minor Thoroughfare  30  30  30  30 5  0  
25 

5  
35 

5  

With Parking in Front  -  -  -  -  -  60  -  

Without Parking in Front  -  -  -  -  -  40  -  

Minimum Side Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Residential District  

10  10 6  10 6  10 6  0  30  40  

Minimum Side Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Commercial or 

Industrial District  
10  10 6  10 6  10 6  0  0  40  

Minimum Rear Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Residential District  

10  10 6  10 6  10 6  0  30  40  

Minimum Rear Yard (ft.)  
Abutting Commercial or 

Industrial District  
10  10 6  10 6  10 6  0  0  40  

Height Limit (ft.)  35  35  35  
45 and no more than 

3 stories  
Note 

10  
75  75  

Buffer if Abutting a Residential 
District (ft.)  

0  0  0  
0  

20 
Note 9  20  20  

 Z:\Boards and Committees\Planning and Zoning Board\Recommendations\Code Amendment - Multi-Family Residential Dwellings - January 
2018 - recommended by P&Z.docx 

 

26



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 28, 2019 

Subject:   FY 2019-2020 Budget Calendar 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Proposed Budget Calendar  

 

Description / Summary of Request: 

Attached is the proposed budget calendar for fiscal year 2019-2020 for approval at this 

evening’s meeting. 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager recommends approval of the attached budget calendar for fiscal year 
2019-2020. 

Suggested Motion: 

I make the motion to approve the attached budget calendar for fiscal year 2019-2020. 

 

27



Town of Weaverville 

Budget Calendar 

FY 2019-2020 

 

Budget Activity Date/Time/Location Responsible Party 

Budget Requests & CIP Requests Due to Manager Friday, March 1, 2019 
Due by 5:00pm 

• Department Heads 

Manager’s Budget Review, Analysis & Department 
Head Meetings in Development of Proposed Budget 

March 4 – April 12, 2019 • Town Manager 
• Department Heads 

Initial Draft Budget Presentation 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, April 15, 2019 
7:00pm 

 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 

Budget Workshop #1  
(Regularly-Scheduled Workshop) 

Tuesday, May 14, 2019 
6:00pm 

 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 
• Department Heads 

Set Public Hearing on Budget 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, May 20, 2019 
7:00pm 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 

Budget Workshop #2  
(Proposed Special-Called Workshop) 

Tuesday, May 21, 2019 
6:00pm 

 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 
• Department Heads 

Budget Workshop #3: Public Hearing on Budget 
(Regularly-Scheduled Workshop) 

Tuesday, June 11, 2019 
6:00pm 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 
• Department Heads 

Town Council’s Adoption of Budget / Ordinance 
(Regular Town Council Meeting) 

Monday, June 17, 2019 
7:00pm 

 

• Town Council 
• Town Manager 

 
 

28



 

Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

 

Town Manager’s Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

    

January 2019 

A. Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning Board:  As a reminder, your scheduled 

February 12 workshop is a joint meeting with the Planning & Zoning Board. This 

workshop is scheduled for 6:00pm. 

 

B. Crosswalk Signage:  As an update to previous conversations, I spoke with my 

contact at NCDOT regarding the crosswalk signage in town. He advised that the 

signage had been “refreshed” recently at the direction of the Division Traffic 

Engineering Director due to statistics involving pedestrian accidents in fatalities in 

Buncombe County. He noted that Buncombe County is the 6th highest for pedestrian 

fatalities in North Carolina. He further advised that he has, in the past, had 

complaints from pedestrians who are citizens of Weaverville who have complained 

that the crosswalks were not identified well enough. He states that the current signs 

are based on the standards spelled out within the national standards using the U.S. 

Department of Transportation’s Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for 

Streets and Highways. 

 

C. Update on the Town’s Martin Luther King Jr. Day Program:  As you’re aware, the 

Town’s inaugural Martin Luther King Jr. Day program was held on January 21. The 

event was held at Weaverville United Methodist Church and we had almost 50 people 

in attendance. Everyone was very complimentary of the program. 

 

D. Citizens Academy:  Unlike previous years, we have only received five applications 

for the 2019 Citizens Academy. For this reason, we will be postponing the next 

Academy until 2020.  

 

E. Town Hall Roof Repairs:  During recent rain storms we have determined that a 

membrane along some points of the roofline of Town Hall have fallen (see pictures 

below). This has caused some minor leaks into the ceiling in the Police Department 

area of the building. We have a company who will be repairing this in the days to 

come. 

 

29



  

  
 

30



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 28, 2019 

Subject:   Update on Greenways Project 

Presenter:   Doug Dearth 

Attachments:  Conceptual Plan from Reems Creek Greenways 
    Feasibility Study  
 

Description / Summary of Request: 

Doug Dearth will be present at this meeting to provide a brief overview and update on the 
greenways project. 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

No action requested. 

 

31



Reems Creek Greenway Feasibility Study • Town of Weaverville

CORRIDOR DESIGN MAPS36
32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 28, 2019 

Subject:   Update on July 4 Celebration/Fireworks 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager 

Attachments:  Site Plan for Fireworks Staging Area 

    Budget Amendment  
 

Description / Summary of Request: 

As the Mayor and Town Council are aware, staff has been working with the school system 

to garner approval for staging the Town’s fourth of July fireworks on the Weaverville 

Primary School baseball field. After correspondence and meetings with the Buncombe 

County Board of Education Chair Ann Franklin, Superintendent Tony Baldwin and Principal 

Stephen Chandler, this has been approved. 

The attached site plan shows the location for the fireworks staging and the 200’ safety area 

for the fireworks display. The school’s approval of using the baseball field is contingent 

upon the Town covering the affected school roof areas with the fire blankets previously 

discussed at a Council meeting. The Town Manager is recommending approval of the 
attached budget amendment for the purchase of these fire blankets. 

 

 

 

 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager is recommending approval of the attached budget amendment of 

$8,94.00 for the purchase of fire blankets for the July 4 event. 

Suggested Motion: 

I make the motion to approve the attached budget amendment of $8,94.00 for the 

purchase of fire blankets for the July 4 event. 

 

33



Fireworks staging 

200’ safety area 

BROWN STREET 

M
A

IN
 S

TR
EE

T 

Fire 

blankets  
W

EA
V

ER
V

IL
LE

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y

 S
C

H
O

O
L 

34



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-410-411-50500  Gov Body – Capital Equipment  $8,940.00 
     
     
     
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-004-310-09900  Appropriated Fund Balance                         $8,940.00   
     
     
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment. To purchase 
Pyroblankets for school roof tops during 4th of July Firework display.  

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

35



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: January 28, 2019 

Subject:  Community Center Project 

Presenter:  Town Manager Selena Coffey 

Attachments: Schematic Drawings 
Analysis of Design Implications 

Description / Summary of Request: 

At a recent meeting Town Council requested that the Town Manager and staff work with the 
architectural firm to address the following: 1) Finalize the concept plans for the new community 
center with change from a commercial kitchen to a catering kitchen and 2) Request estimated cost 
implications if rooms within the community center were designated for use as sports courts for 
pickleball and other similar activities.  

As follow-up to Council’s direction, the Town Manager met with the Mayor and each Council 
Member to review two options for the layout of the community center, option A and option B. The 
preference from all was that we move forward with option B. See attachments A0.01, A2.01, A4.01, 
A2.01, which are representative of option B. 

The Town Manager requested an additional drawing to reflect plans for the entire community center 
site. The purpose of this request references back to the period in time when staff was trying to 
develop a site plan that incorporated outdoor multi-purpose sports courts that could be utilized for 
recreational purposes, such as multi-sports courts for tennis, pickleball, basketball and other outdoor 
passive recreation activities. Our architectural firm has addressed this request as well. See 
attachment A1.01. 

Finally, in order to address design cost implications, our architects provided an analysis. This 
analysis shows that the community center project cost could increase by $59,000 – $78,350 by 
conforming the rooms to accommodate such activities as indoor pickleball. This would also have 
other functional and aesthetic implications. See attachment 3. 

Action Requested: 

The Town Manager has been tasked with moving this project forward within the timeline presented and 
discussed during previous meetings and workshops. In order to remain within the timeline, Town Council will 
be asked to vote as to whether it wishes to construct the community center to accommodate the 
aforementioned sports activities. If Council votes to stay within the planned scope and not include space for 
indoor sports activities, staff will continue to plan for these activities to be constructed as outdoor spaces. 

Recommended Motion: 
I move that the Town Manager be directed to move forward with the community center 
project that does not accommodate the indoor sports activities as presented, but be 
tasked with including the outdoor multi-sports courts in a future phase of the project. 

36

scoffey
Typewritten Text



Drawing

Scale

Date

Project Number

Project Name

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

R

H C A

R

N
O

T
R

A

LO
I N

TSI
E
G

RE
DE

C
T

E

CRA H

TI

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

51501

5774

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

L

A

H
E V I

S N

L E ,

C

J

NH
O

C. L E R

OT
N

GE

CONSULTANTS:

COPYRIGHT        BY LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  THIS 
DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  IT IS TO 
BE USED ONLY FOR THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED AND IS NOT TO BE 
USED FOR OTHER PROJECTS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY WRITTEN 
AGREEMENT WITH LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.

© 01/2019

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

7

A JHGFEDCB

6

5

4

3

2

1

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

Legerton
ARCHITECTURE

21 North Liberty Street, Asheville, NC  28801
828.251.9125 www.LegertonArchitecture.com

no. date revision

C:\Users\mmitchell\Documents\Weaverville-CC_R2018_michaelS2EW4.rvt
1/23/2019 2:51:04 PM

3" = 1'-0"

W
EA

V
ER

V
IL

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

EN
TE

R

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E,
 W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE
, 

N
C

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

1.23.2019

1820

A0.01
COVER SHEET

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 D

ES
IG

N
1

.2
3

.2
0

1
9

ARCHITECT
LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.
21 N. LIBERTY STREET
ASHEVILLE, NC 28801
TEL. 828.251.9125
FAX  828.281.1287

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER
LAKE LOUISE, WEAVERVILLE, NC

1.23.2019
SCHEMATIC DESIGN

ARCHITECTURAL
A0.01 COVER SHEET
A1.00 SITE SURVEY
A1.01 PROPOSED SITE PLAN
A2.01 FLOOR PLAN
A4.01 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
A4.02 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

DRAWING  INDEX

A0.01

Exterior-View - Main Entrance3

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
SITEWORK STUDIOS
352 DEPOT STREET, SUITE 120
ASHEVILLE, NC 28801 
TEL. 828.225.4945

P/M/E ENGINEERS
SUD ASSOCIATES, PA.
FLAT IRON BUILDING, SUITE 706
20 BATTERY PARK AVENUE
ASHEVILLE, NC 28801
TEL. 828.255.4691

OWNER
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE
30 SOUTH MAIN STREET
P.O. BOX 338
WEAVERVILLE, NC 28787
TEL. 828.645.7116

CIVIL ENGINEER
CIVIL DESIGN CONCEPTS, PA.
168 PATTON AVENUE
ASHEVILLE, NC 28801
TEL. 828.252.5388

STRUCTURAL ENGINEER
MEDLOCK AND ASSOCIATES, PA.
53 ASHELAND AVE., SUITE 101
ASHEVILLE, NC 28801
TEL. 828.232.4448

As indicated

A0.01

Exterior-View - North Elevation (from Parking Lot)1

A0.01

Exterior-View - Southwest Elevation (Overlooking Lake Louise)2

37



L/SL/S

TOW
N
D.B

. 48
0

15I
N.D

OGW
OO

D

3IN
.DO

GW
OO

D
3IN

.DO
GW

OO
D

3IN
.DO

GW
OO

D
20I

N.R
.OA

K

N.D
OGW

OO
D

3IN
.DO

GW
OO

D

3IN
.DO

GW
OO

D

3IN
.DO

GW
OO

D

E

RE

14I
N.D

OU
BLE

 W.
 OA

K

10I
N.Y

.PIN
E

10I
N.Y

.PIN
E

8IN
.Y.P

INE

13I
N.R

.OA
K

11IN
.R.O

AK

12I
N.R

.OA
K

15I
N.R

.OA
K

35I
N.R

.OA
K

5IN
.R.O

AK

4IN
.RE

DB
UD

6IN
.HIC

KO
RY

SI

U.P
.L.

U.P
.L

U.P
.E U.P

.L

 -2
5'

 - 
0"

  -2
0'

 - 
0"

  -1
5'

 - 
0"

 

 -1
0'

 - 
0"

 

 -5
' -

 0
" 

A4.01

2

A4.022

A4.01

1

A4.02 1

COMMUNITY 
ROOM

STORAGE ROOM

WOMEN'S 
TOILET

FAMILY 
TOILET

FAMILY 
TOILET

ENTRY

OFFICE

JANKITCHEN

MECHANICAL

COVERED 
ENTRY 
PORCH

MUSEUM 
ENTRY

MUSEUM 

MULTI-PURPOSE
ROOM

MEN'S 
TOILET

CLO

PARKING 
LOT

PARKING LOT

SERVICE 
ROAD

40
' -

 0
"

29
' -

 1
0 

3/
4"

10
' -

 1
 3

/8
"

20
' -

 1
 1

/4
"

9'
 - 

9 
3/

8"

2' - 11 3/4"

16' - 0" 34' - 0" 7' - 0" 4' - 7" 11' - 11 1/4" 7' - 4 1/4" 11' - 2 3/4" 7' - 10 1/2"

36
' -

 1
"

6'
 - 

1"
24

' -
 3

 1
/2

"
23

' -
 0

 1
/4

"
1'

 - 
10

 1
/2

"

7' - 10 3/4" 11' - 2 3/4" 7' - 10 1/2"

32' - 0"

13' - 0" 15' - 0" 13' - 0"

COVERED 
PATIO

SIDEWALK

STONE 
STEPS

FLAGPOLE

H.C. H.C. H.C.

TR
A
S
H
 / 

R
EC

YC
LE

 

Drawing

Scale

Date

Project Number

Project Name

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

R

H C A

R

N
O

T
R

A

LO
I N

TSI
E
G

RE
DE

C
T

E

CRA H

TI

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

51501

5774

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

L

A

H
E V I

S N

L E ,

C

J

NH
O

C. L E R

OT
N

GE

CONSULTANTS:

COPYRIGHT        BY LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  THIS 
DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  IT IS TO 
BE USED ONLY FOR THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED AND IS NOT TO BE 
USED FOR OTHER PROJECTS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY WRITTEN 
AGREEMENT WITH LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.

© 01/2019

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

7

A JHGFEDCB

6

5

4

3

2

1

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

Legerton
ARCHITECTURE

21 North Liberty Street, Asheville, NC  28801
828.251.9125 www.LegertonArchitecture.com

no. date revision

C:\Users\mmitchell\Documents\Weaverville-CC_R2018_michaelS2EW4.rvt
1/23/2019 2:51:33 PM

1/8" = 1'-0"

W
EA

V
ER

V
IL

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

EN
TE

R

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E,
 W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE
, 

N
C

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

1.23.2019

1820

A2.01
FLOOR PLAN

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 D

ES
IG

N
1

.2
3

.2
0

1
9

1/8" = 1'-0"A2.01

PROPOSED FLOOR PLAN1
N

0 4 8 16

38



LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
10' - 0"

LEVEL 3
27' - 7"

LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
10' - 0"

LEVEL 3
27' - 7"

Drawing

Scale

Date

Project Number

Project Name

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

R

H C A

R

N
O

T
R

A

LO
I N

TSI
E
G

RE
DE

C
T

E

CRA H

TI

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

51501

5774

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

L

A

H
E V I

S N

L E ,

C

J

NH
O

C. L E R

OT
N

GE

CONSULTANTS:

COPYRIGHT        BY LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  THIS 
DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  IT IS TO 
BE USED ONLY FOR THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED AND IS NOT TO BE 
USED FOR OTHER PROJECTS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY WRITTEN 
AGREEMENT WITH LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.

© 01/2019

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

7

A JHGFEDCB

6

5

4

3

2

1

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

Legerton
ARCHITECTURE

21 North Liberty Street, Asheville, NC  28801
828.251.9125 www.LegertonArchitecture.com

no. date revision

C:\Users\mmitchell\Documents\Weaverville-CC_R2018_michaelS2EW4.rvt
1/23/2019 2:51:48 PM

1/8" = 1'-0"

W
EA

V
ER

V
IL

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

EN
TE

R

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E,
 W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE
, 

N
C

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

1.23.2019

1820

A4.01
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 D

ES
IG

N
1

.2
3

.2
0

1
9

1/8" = 1'-0"A4.01

NORTH ELEVATION1

1/8" = 1'-0"A4.01

SOUTH ELEVATION2

A4.01

Exterior-View A3

A4.01

Exterior-View C5

A4.01

Exterior-View B4

39



LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
10' - 0"

LEVEL 3
27' - 7"

LEVEL 1
0' - 0"

LEVEL 2
10' - 0"

LEVEL 3
27' - 7"

Drawing

Scale

Date

Project Number

Project Name

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

R

H C A

R

N
O

T
R

A

LO
I N

TSI
E
G

RE
DE

C
T

E

CRA H

TI

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

51501

5774

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

L

A

H
E V I

S N

L E ,

C

J

NH
O

C. L E R

OT
N

GE

CONSULTANTS:

COPYRIGHT        BY LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  THIS 
DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  IT IS TO 
BE USED ONLY FOR THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED AND IS NOT TO BE 
USED FOR OTHER PROJECTS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY WRITTEN 
AGREEMENT WITH LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.

© 01/2019

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

7

A JHGFEDCB

6

5

4

3

2

1

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

Legerton
ARCHITECTURE

21 North Liberty Street, Asheville, NC  28801
828.251.9125 www.LegertonArchitecture.com

no. date revision

C:\Users\mmitchell\Documents\Weaverville-CC_R2018_michaelS2EW4.rvt
1/23/2019 2:52:00 PM

1/8" = 1'-0"

W
EA

V
ER

V
IL

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

EN
TE

R

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E,
 W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE
, 

N
C

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

1.23.2019

1820

A4.02
EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 D

ES
IG

N
1

.2
3

.2
0

1
9

1/8" = 1'-0"A4.02

WEST ELEVATION1

1/8" = 1'-0"A4.02

EAST ELEVATION2

A4.02

Exterior-View D3
A4.02

Exterior-View E4

40



Drawing

Scale

Date

Project Number

Project Name

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

R

H C A

R

N
O

T
R

A

LO
I N

TSI
E
G

RE
DE

C
T

E

CRA H

TI

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

RE
GI
ST
ER
ED
AR

CHI
TECTURALCORPORA

TION

NORTHCAROL
IN

A

51501

5774

L
E
G
E
R
TO

N
AR

CHITECTU
R
E
,P
.A
.

A

SHEV IL L E
, N

C

L

A

H
E V I

S N

L E ,

C

J

NH
O

C. L E R

OT
N

GE

CONSULTANTS:

COPYRIGHT        BY LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  THIS 
DOCUMENT IS THE PROPERTY OF LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, P.A.  IT IS TO 
BE USED ONLY FOR THIS SPECIFIC PROJECT IDENTIFIED AND IS NOT TO BE 
USED FOR OTHER PROJECTS, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, EXCEPT BY WRITTEN 
AGREEMENT WITH LEGERTON ARCHITECTURE, PA.

© 01/2019

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

7

A JHGFEDCB

6

5

4

3

2

1

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
FOR REVIEW ONLY

Legerton
ARCHITECTURE

21 North Liberty Street, Asheville, NC  28801
828.251.9125 www.LegertonArchitecture.com

no. date revision

C:\Users\mmitchell\Documents\Weaverville-CC_R2018_michaelS2EW4.rvt
1/23/2019 2:51:25 PM

1" = 40'-0"

W
EA

V
ER

V
IL

LE
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y 
C

EN
TE

R

LA
KE

 L
O

U
IS

E,
 W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE
, 

N
C

SCHEMATIC DESIGN

1.23.2019

1820

A1.01
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

WEAVERVILLE COMMUNITY CENTER

TO
W

N
 O

F 
W

EA
V
ER

V
IL

LE

S
C

H
EM

A
TI

C
 D

ES
IG

N
1

.2
3

.2
0

1
9

1" = 40'-0"A1.01

PROPOSED SITE PLAN1
N

41



 

 

 
 
Weaverville Community Center – Indoor Pickleball Court– Design Implications   
January 23, 2019 
 
 
1. Building SF - The current proposed community room is approximately 40 ft. wide x 57 ft. long or 

2,280 square feet.  A pickleball court is 20 ft. wide x 44 ft. long.  With the desired clear space 
around the court of approximately 9 ft., the overall space required is approximately 38 ft. wide x 
62 ft. long.  This would increase the size of the community room by approximately 75 square feet.  
With an approximate square foot construction cost of $200 - $250 per square foot, which is the 
average current market cost for commerical work recently in this area, that would be an additional 
building cost in the range of of $18,750.  And this does not include any additional cost for such 
things as added window protection or more durable wall protection, or increased building volume.   

 
Probable Cost Increase for Additional Room Area:      $15,000 - $18,750  
 

2. Building Height – The current design proposes a ceiling height of 10 feet to the bottom of 
proposed exposed wood trusses in the community room.  This may need to be increased for the 
indoor pickleball court up to a minimum height of 16 feet.  This would increase the amount of 
material and building volume and increase the complexity of the roof framing, all of which would 
add to the overall cost of the building.   

 
Probable Cost Increase for Additional Building Height:     $11,000 -$14,000  
 

3. Interior Wall Protection – Due to the impact of the pickleball, consideration needs to be given to 
the interior wall and ceiling construction to avoid damage and limit long-term maintenance 
replacement costs.  A more durable wall finish, such as that used in a racketball court, should be 
used.  These panels are typically made up of a particleboard core with layers of thermoplastic resin 
sheets bonded together under heat and pressure to make a solid, hard, impact-resistant panel.   
 

Based on the average construction cost in RS Means Data, which is one of the industry guidelines 
for preliminary cost information,  the cost of these panels is in the range of $8-$10 per square foot 
plus the cost of the metal stud wall framing, which would be approximately $2-$3 per square foot 
for an interior wall cost of approximately $10-$13 per square foot.  The cost for typical metal stud 
walls with a sheetrock finish is in the range of  $6-$7 per square foot.  The other consideration 
would be the cost to replace the more expensive panels should they be damaged.  Based on the 
approximate wall area and ceiling area of 4,000 square feet, the additional project expense would 
be the following: 
 
Probable Cost Increase for Wall and Ceiling Area with Impact Panels:  $16,000 -$24,000  
 
Another option, which would be more labor-intensive and time-consuming than metal stud walls,  
would be to use concrete masonry block construction for the interior walls.  Based on the average 
construction cost in RS Means Data, concrete masonry wall construction is in the range of $13-$15 
per square foot. This is approximately $7-$8 per square foot more than typical sheetrock walls 
over metal stud framing, which has been proposed for this project .   
 
Probable Cost Increase for Concrete Block Wall Construction:   $12,000 -$15,600  
 

42

scoffey
Typewritten Text
Attachment 3

scoffey
Typewritten Text



 
 
Weaverville Community Center – Indoor Pickle Ball – Design Implications 
January 23, 2019 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
 

4. Window Protection – The indoor pickleball court would require added window protection from 
breakage with the use of either metal wire screening or the use of stronger, laminated safety glass.  
Both of these options would add additional cost to the project. RS Means Data shows the cost of  
1” double glazed laminated safety glass to be approximately $40-$45 per square foot. The cost for 
standard 1” double glazed tempered glass would be in the range of $30-$35 per square foot.  These 
costs will vary depending upon the thickness of the glass, if the glass is tempered or not, and if the 
glass is tinted along with other factors.   

 
Probable Cost Increase for Laminated Glass:        $5,000 - $6,000  
     

 
5. Floor treatment – The indoor pickleball court would require floor striping, which would need to be 

maintained. One important consideration in the community room is the acoustical performance of 
the flooring material.  The most cost-effective floor finish would be a concrete floor slab on grade 
with painted striping.  However, this would not provide any acoustical control, which will be  
needed for other intended events such as meetings or conferences with public speakers.   
 

6. Room Aesthetics – Given all the factors mentioned, the overall visual aesthetic of the room would 
be greatly altered with an indoor pickleball court and not compatible with the other intended room 
uses, such as weddings, conferences, or other community events.  The pickleball court would 
require an aesthetic and construction similar to a sport court – very utilitarian with hard, durable 
surfaces.  Other events such as weddings, public speaking engagements, conferences, possible 
movies, and other events require a different set of materials.  These activities need a more sound-
attenuated environment for controlled acoustics,  and a much different space design to function 
properly that would not be compatible with the design of a sports activity court.   
 

43



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

DATE OF MEETING:  January 28, 2019  

SUBJECT: Proposed Amendments to the Personnel Policy 
 
PRESENTER:   Town Attorney and Town Manager 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Article VI (Amended) – Holidays and Leave 
  
DESCRIPTION: 

Tonight Town Council is asked to consider revisions to the last of the personnel policy 
articles that the Town Manager and Town Attorney have worked on, Article VI 
concerning holidays and leave.  
 
This Article has been reviewed for compliance with law and current practices. Certain 
provisions have been clarified and/or re-organized. Both Town Manager and Town 
Attorney will be present tonight to answer questions and discuss these recommended 
changes to the Town’s Personnel Policy. 
 
The last step in this project will be to consolidate all of the revisions that Town Council 
has reviewed and approved into one comprehensive Personnel Policy with the focus 
being on the overall organization for clarity and ease of use.  If good direction is 
obtained tonight on Article VI, then it is anticipated that the final policy will be 
presented at the Town Council meeting on February 25, 2019. 
 
 
COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED:    

Council discussion on the proposed amendment to the Personnel Policy is encouraged. 
Action can be taken at tonight’s meeting to adopt the amendment as presented or as 
Council sees fit to amend, or to discuss any changes that Town Council would like to 
incorporate into the final updated personnel policy.   
 
 

44



 

1 
 

Town of Weaverville Personnel Policy 
Article VI.  Holidays and Leaves of Absence  
  
Section 1.  General Policy 
 
The policy of the Town is to provide annual leave, sick leave, and holiday leave to all full-
time employees, and to provide proportionately equivalent amounts to employees having 
average work weeks of differing lengths, subject to a maximum of 12 hours per day. 
Employees shall accrue leave proportionately with each payroll period. 
 
Section 2.  Holidays 
 

A. Holiday Schedule - The Town provides 12 paid holidays each calendar year for 
eligible employees and recognizes the following holidays: 
  

New Year’s Day – 1 day 
  Martin Luther King Birthday – 1 day 
  Good Friday – 1 day 
  Memorial Day – 1 day 
  Independence Day – 1 day 
  Labor Day – 1 day 
  Veteran’s Day – 1 day 
  Thanksgiving – 2 days 

Christmas – 3 days  
 

The Town Manager shall adopt and publish a schedule of holidays each year 
consistent with this policy but taking into consideration the days of the week on 
which the above holidays fall.  
 
All fulltime and part-time employees, whether regular or probationary 
employees, who are normally scheduled to work on the days on which holidays 
are observed, shall receive holiday pay. Auxiliary employees are eligible for 
holiday pay if, and only if, they are actually scheduled to work the holiday. 
Temporary and seasonal employees are not eligible for holiday pay.  
 
Holiday pay shall consist of an amount calculated at the employee’s normal rate 
of pay for the hours of a normal workday for that employee (e.g. 4 hours, 7.5 
hours, 8 hours, 10 hours, 12 hours, 24 hours), subject to a maximum of 12 hours 
for each holiday. 
 

B. Religious Holidays – Employees wishing to schedule time off for religious 
observances must request leave from their respective department heads.  The 
department head will attempt to arrange the work schedule so that an employee 
may be granted annual leave for the religious observance.   Annual leave for 

45



 

2 
 

religious observance may be denied only when granting the leave would create 
an undue hardship for the Town. 
 

C. Effect of Holidays on Other Types of Paid Leave – Regular holidays which 
occur during a vacation, sick or other leave period of any employee shall not be 
considered as annual, sick, or other leave. 

 
D. Compensation When Work is Required and For Shift Personnel –  

Employees required to perform work on regularly scheduled holidays will be 
paid for hours actually worked in addition to any holiday pay to which they are 
entitled.  If a holiday falls on a regularly scheduled off-duty day for shift 
personnel, the employee shall receive the hours for paid holiday leave.    

  
Section 3. Annual Leave 
 
The Town provides all eligible employees with periods of time off for rest and relaxation 
for the mutual benefit of the employee and the Town.   
 
Annual leave may also be used by employees who wish to observe religious holidays other 
than those granted by the Town.  Employees who wish to use leave for religious 
observances must request leave from their respective department heads.  The department 
head will attempt to arrange the work schedule so that an employee may be granted annual 
leave for the religious observance.  Annual leave for religious observance may be denied 
only when granting the leave would create an undue hardship for the Town. 
 

A. Eligible Employees – All employees, whether full-time or part-time, 
probationary or regular, are eligible for the accrual and use of annual leave, 
except for the following employees:  elected officials, auxiliary employees (such 
as relief firefighters and auxiliary law enforcement officers), temporary 
employees (such as short-term project employees and seasonal workers). 
  

B. Use by Probationary Employees – Employees serving a probationary period 
following their initial appointment shall not be permitted to take annual leave 
during the first six (6) months of the probationary period unless the denial of 
such leave would create an undue hardship or the leave is agreed upon prior to 
employment.  Any annual leave granted during the probationary period must 
have the prior approval of the Town Manager. 
 

C. Accrual Rate  – For the purpose of earning and accruing annual leave, the 
twelve (12) calendar month period between January 1 and December 31 is 
established as the leave year. Eligible employees shall earn annual leave at the 
following rate based on total service years: 

 
 

 

Commented [JJ1]: Compensatory time deleted 
throughout 

46



 

3 
 

Service Time Accrued Per Year 
Less than 2 years 10 days 

2 – 9 years 15 days 
10 – 15 years 21 days 

16+ years 27 days 
 
The above table represents the number of days that an employee shall accrue 
annual leave time and is based on each employee’s normal scheduled work day 
(e.g. 4 hours, 7.5 hours, 8 hours, 10 hours, 12 hours, 24 hours), subject to a 
maximum of 12 hours per day of annual leave. Annual leave shall be converted 
to an hourly rate of accrual that shall be applied in each payroll period.  
 

D. Maximum Accumulation – Annual leave may be accumulated without any 
maximum between January 1 and December 31 of each calendar year.  
Effective the first payroll in the calendar year, any employee with more than 240 
hours of accumulated annual leave shall have the excess accumulation converted 
to sick leave so that only 240 hours of annual leave are carried forward to 
January 1 of the new calendar year.  
 
Employees are cautioned not to retain excess accumulated annual leave late in 
the year. Because of the necessity to keep all functions in operation, large 
numbers of employees cannot be granted annual leave at any one time. If an 
employee has excess annual leave accumulation during the latter part of the year 
and is unable to take such leave because of staffing demands, the employee shall 
receive no special consideration either in having annual leave scheduled or in 
receiving any exception to the maximum accumulation.  
 

E. Manner of Taking –Annual leave requests should be submitted in advance to 
the employee’s department head.  Employees shall be granted the use of earned 
annual leave at those times designated by the department head which will least 
obstruct normal operations of the Town.  Department heads shall consider 
staffing needs in approving annual leave requests.  Department heads are 
responsible for ensuring that approved annual leave does not hinder the 
effectiveness of service delivery.  Annual leave should normally be taken in one 
hour increments. 
 

F. Payment upon Separation –An employee who has successfully completed six 
months of the probationary period will normally be paid for annual leave 
accumulated from prior years of service in an amount not to exceed 240 hours 
plus any unused annual leave accrued in the year of separation, provided notice 
is given to the supervisor at least two weeks in advance of the effective date of 
resignation.  Any employee failing to give the notice required by this section 
shall forfeit payment for annual leave.  The notice requirement may be waived 
by the Town Manager when deemed to be in the best interest of the Town.  
Employees who are involuntarily separated shall receive payment for annual 

47



 

4 
 

leave accumulated from prior years and any unused annual leave accrued in the 
year of separation provided, however, the total payment for annual leave shall 
not exceed 240 hours.  Any annual leave advanced to an employee and due to the 
Town shall be deducted from the employee’s final compensation. Any Employee 
who separates from the Town’s service while in his or her initial probationary 
period is not entitled to payment for any accrued annual leave. 

 
G. Payment upon Death – The estate of an employee who dies while employed by 

the Town shall be entitled to payment for annual leave accumulated from prior 
years of service in an amount not to exceed 240 hours plus any unused annual 
leave accrued in the year of the employee’s death. 

 
H. Effect of Reinstatement – Any employee who separates in good standing from 

Town service and is reinstated may, in the discretion of the Town Manager, 
receive credit for previous years of service with the Town for purposes of 
establishing the accrual rate for annual leave. If credit is approved, the total 
months of previous service time will be added to the employee’s service time at 
the end of the six-month probationary period.  
 
 

Section 4. Sick Leave 
 
The Town provides all eligible employees with periods of time off for illness and injury. 
Sick leave is a privilege granted by the Town and not a right.  
  

A. Eligible Employees – All employees, whether full-time or part-time, 
probationary or regular, are eligible for the accrual and use of sick leave, except 
for the following employees:  elected officials, auxiliary employees (such as relief 
firefighters and auxiliary law enforcement officers), temporary employees (such 
as short-term project employees and seasonal workers). 
 

B. Accrual Rate – Sick leave shall accrue at a rate of one (1) day per month of 
service or twelve (12) days per year, based on the employee’s normal work day 
(e.g. 4 hours, 7.5 hours, 8 hours, 10 hours, 12 hours, 24 hours), subject to a 
maximum of 12 hours per sick day.  

 
C. Accumulation – Sick leave is allowed to accumulate for an indefinite period of 

time and there shall be no maximum number of days that can be accrued.  Sick 
leave may be converted upon retirement for service credit as allowed by the 
provisions of the North Carolina Local Government Employees’ Retirement 
System. All sick leave accumulated by an employee shall end and terminate 
without compensation unless otherwise required by law.  

 
 
 
 

Commented [JJ2]: Deleted 3 year window and 
authorized Town Manager discretion. 

48



 

5 
 

D. Appropriate Uses of Sick Leave –  
 

a. Sick leave may be granted for any of the following reasons: sickness, bodily 
injury, medical or dental examinations or treatment, or exposure to a 
contagious illness or disease, when continuing work might jeopardize the 
health of others.  
 

b. Sick leave may also be used when an employee must care for a member of his 
or her immediate family who is ill or injured. 

 
c. Up to three (3) days of sick leave may be used for bereavement leave upon 

the death of an immediate family member.   
 

d. Sick leave may be used to supplement Workers' Compensation Disability 
Leave both during the waiting period before Workers' Compensation 
benefits begin, and afterward to supplement the remaining one-third of 
salary, except that employee may not exceed the regular salary amount using 
this provision. 

 
E. Notification of Use of Sick Leave – Employees must notify their immediate 

supervisor of all requests for sick leave before the leave is taken, if possible, or 
not later than one (1) hour after the beginning of a scheduled work day for 
public works and administrative employees. Police and fire employees must 
notify their supervisor one hour before the start of the shift. Sick leave may only 
be taken with the approval of the immediate supervisor. 
 

F. Medical Certification –  
 

a. The employee’s department head or the Town Manager may require a 
statement from a physician, or other acceptable proof, that the employee was 
unable to report for work as a condition of approving sick leave.  
 

b. At the expiration of an authorized sick leave period, the employee’s 
department head or the Town Manager may require certification of fitness 
for duty from a physician, or other attending healthcare provider, to 
determine if the employee is able to resume his or her regular duties. 

 
c. The employee’s department head or the Town Manager may require a 

statement from a physician stating the employee’s capacity to resume duties, 
for each occasion on which an employee uses sick leave or whenever the 
supervisor observes a pattern of absenteeism. The employee may be 
required to submit to such medical examination or inquiry as the department 
head or Town Manager deems desirable. The department head shall be 
responsible for the application of this provision to the end that: (1) 
employees shall not be on duty when they might endanger their own health, 

49



 

6 
 

the health of other employees, or the public in general; and (2) there will be 
no abuse of sick leave privileges.  

 
G. Transfer of Sick Leave from Previous Employer – The Town will accept sick 

leave balances either accumulated under a previous employer that participated 
in the State or Local Government Employees’ Retirement System, or 
accumulated under a sick leave policy adopted by a previous employer if 
approved by the Town Manager. Upon request of the employee, such sick leave 
will be transferred to the Town and treated as though it were earned with the 
Town upon the following conditions: 

 
(1) Verification of accumulated sick leave must be received in writing from 

the previous employer; 
(2) Verified sick leave will be calculated and accepted in hours rounded to 

the nearest whole; 
(3) The total number of hours accepted as transferred will be added to the 

employee’s leave record after completion of one (1) year of service with 
the Town; 

(4) Sick leave that was paid out at separation will not be counted; 
(5) Sick leave accumulated under a policy that does not provide an employee 

with full salary when used for absences from work due to illness or injury 
will not be counted. 
 

The Town will provide verification of accumulated sick leave for any employee 
separated from Town employment if requested within three (3) years from the 
employee’s last work day with the Town. The Town is under no obligation to 
provide documentation of sick leave balances for employees who have been 
separated from the Town for more than three (3) years.  

 
 
Section 5. Bereavement Leave 
 
Full-time or part-time employees may be granted up to three (3) days of bereavement 
leave for the death of an immediate family member.  Bereavement leave will be unpaid 
unless accrued annual or sick leave is used. Up to three (3) days of sick leave, annual leave, 
or other approved leave may be used. Additional leave time required for such occurrence 
or bereavement leave for those not covered by the immediate family definition may be 
charged to annual leave or other approved leave when approved by the Town Manager, 
otherwise said leave shall be without pay. 
 
 
Section 6. Family and Medical Leave 
 
The Town will provide family and medical leave in accordance with the Family Medical 
Leave Act (FMLA) to its eligible employees. The Town shall post the mandatory FMLA 
Notice and upon hire will provide all new employees with notices required by the U.S. 

Commented [JJ3]: Updated for compliance with FMLA 
and included within Article VI as it pertains to leave (is 
currently Article VII).  

50



 

7 
 

Department of Labor (DOL) on Employee Rights and Responsibilities under the Family and 
Medical Leave Act.  
 
The function of this policy is to provide employees with a general description of their FMLA 
rights. In the event of any conflict between this policy and the applicable law, employees 
will be afforded all rights required by law.  
 
Any questions, concerns, or disputes with this policy should be brought to the attention of 
an employee’s department head, the Human Resources Officer, or the Town Manager. 
 

A. General Provisions – Under this policy, the Town will grant up to 12 weeks of 
FMLA leave during a 12-month period to eligible employees (or up to 26 weeks 
of military caregiver leave to care for a covered service member with a serious 
injury or illness). FMLA leave may be paid, unpaid, or a combination of paid and 
unpaid leave (coordinated with the Town’s annual and sick leave policies), 
depending on the circumstances of the leave and as specified in this policy.  
 

B. Eligibility – To qualify to take family or medical leave under this policy, the 
employee must meet all of the following conditions: 

 
(1) The employee must have worked for the Town for 12 months or 52 weeks. 

The 12 months or 52 weeks need not have been consecutive. Separate 
periods of employment will be counted, provided that the break in service 
does not exceed seven years. Separate periods of employment will be 
counted if the break in service exceeds seven years due to National Guard or 
Reserve military service obligations or when there is a written agreement, 
including a collective bargaining agreement, stating the employer’s intention 
to rehire the employee after the service break. For eligibility purposes, an 
employee will be considered to have been employed for an entire week even 
if the employee was on the payroll for only part of a week or if the employee 
is on leave during the week.  
 

(2) The employee must have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month 
period immediately preceding the commencement of the FMLA leave. The 
1,250 hours do not include time spent on paid or unpaid leave. Consequently, 
these hours of leave should not be counted in determining the 1,250 hours 
eligibility test for an employee under FMLA. 

 
C. Types of Leave Covered – To qualify as FMLA leave under this policy, the leave 

must be for one of the reasons listed below: 
 

(1) the birth of a child and in order to care for that child; 
(2) the placement of a child for adoption or foster care and to care for the 

newly placed child; 
(3) to care for a spouse, child, or parent with a serious health condition (see 

Section D below); 

51



 

8 
 

(4) the serious health condition of the employee (see Section D below); or 
(5) military exigency leave (see Section E below); 
(6) military caregiver leave (see Section F below). 

 
D. Leave for a Serious Health Condition – An employee may take FMLA leave 

because of a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to 
perform the functions of his or her position. An employee may take FMLA leave 
to care for a spouse, child or parent with a serious health condition. 
 
Under the FMLA, a “spouse” means a husband or wife. Husband or wife refers to 
the other person with whom an individual entered into marriage as defined or 
recognized under state law for purposes of marriage in the state in which the 
marriage was entered into or, in the case of a marriage entered into outside of 
any state, if the marriage is valid in the place where entered into and could have 
been entered into in at least one state. This definition includes an individual in a 
same-sex or common law marriage that either: 
 

a) was entered into in a state that recognizes such marriages; or 
b) if entered into outside of any state, is valid in the place where entered 

into and could have been entered into in at least one state.  
 
A “serious health condition” is defined as a condition that requires inpatient care 
at a hospital, hospice or residential medical care facility, including any period of 
incapacity or any subsequent treatment in connection with such inpatient care 
or a condition that requires continuing care by a licensed health care provider. 
 
This policy covers illnesses of a serious and long-term nature, resulting in 
recurring or lengthy absences. Generally, a chronic or long-term health condition 
that would result in a period of three consecutive days of incapacity with the 
first visit to the health care provider within seven days of the onset of the 
incapacity and a second visit within 30 days of the incapacity would be 
considered a serious health condition. For chronic conditions requiring periodic 
health care visits for treatment, such visits must take place at least twice a year.  
 
Employees with questions about what illnesses or injuries are covered under 
this FMLA policy or under the Town's sick leave policy are encouraged to consult 
with the Human Resource Officer.  
 
If an employee takes paid sick leave for a condition that progresses into a serious 
health condition and the employee requests unpaid leave as provided under this 
policy, the Town may designate all or some portion of related leave taken as 
leave under this policy, to the extent that the earlier leave meets the necessary 
qualifications.  
 

E. Military Exigency Leave – An employee whose spouse, son, daughter or parent 
either has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active military 

52



 

9 
 

duty or who is already on covered active duty may take up to 12 weeks of FMLA 
leave for reasons related to or affected by the family member’s call-up or service. 
The qualifying exigency must be one of the following:  

 
(1) short-notice deployment; 
(2) military events and activities; 
(3) child care and school activities;  
(4) financial and legal arrangements;  
(5) counseling; 
(6) rest and recuperation; 
(7) post-deployment activities; or  
(8) additional activities that arise out of active duty, provided that the 

employer and employee agree, including agreement on timing and 
duration of the leave. 

 
Eligible employees are entitled to FMLA leave to care for a current member of 
the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserve, or a 
member of the Armed Forces, the National Guard or Reserve who is on the 
temporary disability retired list, who has a serious injury or illness incurred in 
the line of duty on active duty for which he or she is undergoing medical 
treatment, recuperation, or therapy; or otherwise in outpatient status; or 
otherwise on the temporary disability retired list. Eligible employees may not 
take FMLA leave under this provision to care for former members of the Armed 
Forces, former members of the National Guard and Reserve, or members on the 
permanent disability retired list. 

 
F. Military Caregiver Leave – An employee whose spouse, son, daughter, parent, 

or next of kin is a covered servicemember may take up to 26 weeks of FMLA 
leave in a single 12-month period to care for that servicemember. 

 
“Next of kin” is defined as the closest blood relative of the injured or recovering 
servicemember.  

 
The term “covered servicemember” means: 

 
(1) a member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National 
Guard or Reserve) who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or 
therapy; is otherwise in outpatient status; or is otherwise on the temporary 
disability retired list, for a serious injury or illness; or 

 
(2) a veteran who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy 
for a serious injury or illness and who was a member of the Armed Forces 
(including a member of the National Guard or Reserve) at any time during 
the period of 5 years preceding the date on which the veteran undergoes that 
medical treatment, recuperation or therapy. 

 

53



 

10 
 

The term “serious injury or illness” means: 
 

(1) in the case of a member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the 
National Guard or Reserve), means an injury or illness that was incurred by 
the member in line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or existed 
before the beginning of the member’s active duty and was aggravated by 
service in line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and that may 
render the member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member’s 
office, grade, rank or rating;  

 
(2) in the case of a veteran who was a member of the Armed Forces 
(including a member of the National Guard or Reserve) at any time during a 
period when the person was a covered servicemember, means a qualifying 
(as defined by the Secretary of Labor) injury or illness incurred by a covered 
servicemember in the line of duty on active duty that may render the 
servicemember medically unfit to perform the duties of his or her office, 
grade, rank or rating. 

 
(3) Outpatient status, with respect to a covered servicemember, means the 
status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to either a military medical 
treatment facility as an outpatient; or a unit established for the purpose of 
providing command and control of members of the Armed Forces receiving 
medical care as outpatients. 

 
G. Amount of Leave –  

 
An eligible employee can take up to 12 weeks during any 12-month period for 
the FMLA circumstances described in subparagraphs (1) through (5) of Section C 
above. The 12-month period will be measured forward from the date that FMLA 
leave is first used.  FMLA leave already taken for other FMLA circumstances will 
be deducted from the total of 12 weeks available. 
 
An eligible employee can take up to 26 weeks for the military caregiver leave, as 
described in subparagraph (6) of Section C above, during a single 12-month 
period. For military caregiver leave, the Town will measure the 12-month period 
as a rolling 12-month period measured forward. FMLA leave already taken for 
other FMLA circumstances will be deducted from the total of 26 weeks available.  
 
If a husband and wife both work for the Town and each wishes to take FMLA 
leave for the birth of a child, adoption or placement of a child in foster care, or to 
care for a parent (but not a parent "in-law") with a serious health condition, the 
husband and wife may only take a combined total of 12 weeks of FMLA leave. If a 
husband and wife both work for the Town and each wishes to take FMLA leave 
to care for a covered injured or ill servicemember, the husband and wife may 
only take a combined total of 26 weeks of leave. 

 

54



 

11 
 

H. Employee Status and Benefits During Leave –  
 
While an employee is on FMLA leave, the Town will continue the employee’s 
health benefits during the leave period at the same level and under the same 
conditions as if the employee had continued to work.  
 
If the employee chooses not to return to work for reasons other than a continued 
serious health condition of the employee or the employee's family member or a 
circumstance beyond the employee's control, the Town will require the 
employee to reimburse the Town the amount it paid for the employee's health 
insurance premium during the FMLA leave period.  
 
The employer will provide at least 15 days’ notification prior to any 
discontinuance of health benefit coverage. 
 
If the employee contributes to a life insurance or disability plan, the Town will 
continue making payroll deductions while the employee is on paid leave. While 
the employee is on unpaid leave, the employee may request continuation of such 
benefits and pay his or her portion of the premiums, or the employer may elect 
to maintain such benefits during the leave and pay the employee's share of the 
premium payments. If the employee does not continue these payments, the 
employer may discontinue coverage during the leave. If the employer maintains 
coverage, the employer may recover the costs incurred for paying the 
employee's share of any premiums, whether or not the employee returns to 
work. 
 

I. Employee Status After Leave  – An employee who takes FMLA leave under this 
policy may be asked to provide a fitness for duty (FFD) clearance from a health 
care provider. This requirement will be included in the employer’s response to 
the FMLA request. Generally, an employee who takes FMLA leave will be able to 
return to the same position or a position with equivalent status, pay, benefits 
and other employment terms. The position will be the same or one that is 
virtually identical in terms of pay, benefits and working conditions. The Town 
may choose to exempt certain key employees from this requirement and not 
return them to the same or similar position when doing so will cause substantial 
and grievous economic injury to business operations. Key employees will be 
given written notice at the time FMLA leave is requested of his or her status as a 
key employee.  

 
J. Use of Paid and Unpaid Leave –  

 
An employee who is taking FMLA leave because of the employee's own serious 
health condition or the serious health condition of a family member must use all 
accumulated and accrued annual leave and sick leave prior to being eligible for 
unpaid leave. Sick leave may be run concurrently with FMLA leave if the reason 

55



 

12 
 

for the FMLA leave is covered by the established sick leave policy. Annual leave 
may be run concurrently with FMLA leave. 
 
FMLA Leave for the birth of a child or for an employee's serious health condition 
will be designated as FMLA leave and such employee must use all accumulated 
and accrued annual leave and sick leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave. 
An employee who is taking leave for the adoption or foster care of a child must 
use all accumulated and accrued annual leave prior to being eligible for unpaid 
leave.  
 
An employee who is using military exigency FMLA leave must use all 
accumulated and accrued annual leave prior to being eligible for unpaid leave. 
An employee using FMLA military caregiver leave must also use all accumulated 
and accrued annual leave and sick leave (as long as the reason for the absence is 
covered by the Town’s sick leave policy) prior to being eligible for unpaid leave.  

 
K. Intermittent Leave or a Reduce Work Schedule –  

 
The employee may take FMLA leave in 12 consecutive weeks, may use the leave 
intermittently (take a day periodically when needed over the year) or, under 
certain circumstances, may use the leave to reduce the workweek or workday, 
resulting in a reduced hour schedule. In all cases, the FMLA leave may not exceed 
a total of 12 workweeks (or 26 workweeks to care for an injured or ill 
servicemember over a 12-month period).  
 
The Town may temporarily transfer an employee to an available alternative 
position with equivalent pay and benefits if the alternative position would better 
accommodate the intermittent or reduced schedule, in instances when FMLA 
leave for the employee or employee's family member is foreseeable and for 
planned medical treatment, including recovery from a serious health condition 
or to care for a child after birth or placement for adoption or foster care.  
 
For the birth, adoption or foster care of a child, the Town and the employee must 
mutually agree to the schedule before the employee may take the FMLA leave 
intermittently or work a reduced-hour schedule. Leave for birth, adoption or 
foster care of a child must be taken within one year of the birth or placement of 
the child.  
 
If the employee is taking leave for a serious health condition or because of the 
serious health condition of a family member, the employee should try to reach 
an agreement with the Town before taking intermittent FMLA leave or working 
a reduced-hour schedule. If this is not possible, then the employee must prove 
that the use of the leave is medically necessary.  
 

L. Return to Work – An employee who takes FMLA leave under this policy will 
return to the same job or a job with equivalent status, pay, benefits, and other 

56



 

13 
 

employment terms.  The position will be the same or one which entails 
substantially equivalent skill, effort, responsibility, and authority. 
 

M. Certification for the Employee’s Serious Health Condition – 
 
The Town will require certification for the employee’s serious health condition. 
The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or 
provide a reasonable explanation for the delay. Failure to provide certification 
may result in a denial of continuation of FMLA leave. Medical certification will be 
provided using the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider for Employee’s 
Serious Health Condition. 
 
The Town may directly contact the employee’s health care provider for 
verification or clarification purposes using a health care professional, an HR 
professional, leave administrator or management official. The Town will not use 
the employee’s direct supervisor for this contact. Before the Town makes this 
direct contact with the health care provider, the employee will be a given an 
opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical certification. In 
compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the Town will obtain the 
employee’s permission for clarification of individually identifiable health 
information.  
 
The Town has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason to doubt the 
certification. The Town will pay for the employee to get a certification from a 
second doctor, which the Town will select. The Town may deny FMLA leave to an 
employee who refuses to release relevant medical records to the health care 
provider designated to provide a second or third opinion. If necessary to resolve 
a conflict between the original certification and the second opinion, the Town 
will require the opinion of a third doctor. The Town and the employee will 
mutually select the third doctor, and the Town will pay for the opinion. This 
third opinion will be considered final. The employee will be provisionally 
entitled to FMLA leave and benefits under the FMLA pending the second and/or 
third opinion.  
 

N. Certification for the Family Member’s Serious Health Condition – 
 
The Town will require certification for the family member’s serious health 
condition. The employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the 
request or provide a reasonable explanation for the delay. Failure to provide 
certification may result in a denial of continuation of FMLA leave. Medical 
certification will be provided using the DOL Certification of Health Care Provider 
for Family Member’s Serious Health Condition. 
 
The Town may directly contact the employee’s family member’s health care 
provider for verification or clarification purposes using a health care 
professional, an HR professional, leave administrator or management official. 

57



 

14 
 

The Town will not use the employee’s direct supervisor for this contact. Before 
the Town makes this direct contact with the health care provider, the employee 
will be a given an opportunity to resolve any deficiencies in the medical 
certification. In compliance with HIPAA Medical Privacy Rules, the Town will 
obtain the employee’s family member’s permission for clarification of 
individually identifiable health information.  
 
The Town has the right to ask for a second opinion if it has reason to doubt the 
certification. The Town will pay for the employee’s family member to get a 
certification from a second doctor, which the Town will select. The Town may 
deny FMLA leave to an employee whose family member refuses to release 
relevant medical records to the health care provider designated to provide a 
second or third opinion. If necessary to resolve a conflict between the original 
certification and the second opinion, the Town will require the opinion of a third 
doctor. The Town and the employee will mutually select the third doctor, and the 
Town will pay for the opinion. This third opinion will be considered final. The 
employee will be provisionally entitled to FMLA leave and benefits under the 
FMLA pending the second and/or third opinion. 
 

O. Certification of Qualifying Exigency for Military Family Leave  – The Town 
will require certification of the qualifying exigency for military family leave. The 
employee must respond to such a request within 15 days of the request or 
provide a reasonable explanation for the delay. Failure to provide certification 
may result in a denial of continuation of FMLA leave. This certification will be 
provided using the DOL Certification of Qualifying Exigency for Military Family 
Leave. 
 

P. Certification for Serious Injury or Illness of Covered Servicemember for 
Military Family Leave  – The Town will require certification for the serious 
injury or illness of the covered servicemember. The employee must respond to 
such a request within 15 days of the request or provide a reasonable explanation 
for the delay. Failure to provide certification may result in a denial of 
continuation of FMLA leave. This certification will be provided using the DOL 
Certification for Serious Injury or Illness of Covered Servicemember. 
 

Q. Recertification – The Town may request recertification for the serious health 
condition of the employee or the employee’s family member no more frequently 
than every 30 days unless circumstances have changed significantly, or if the 
employer receives information casting doubt on the reason given for the 
absence, or if the employee seeks an extension of his or her leave. Otherwise, the 
Town may request recertification for the serious health condition of the 
employee or the employee’s family member every six months in connection with 
an FMLA absence. The Town may provide the employee’s health care provider 
with the employee’s attendance records and ask whether need for leave is 
consistent with the employee’s serious health condition.  

 

58



 

15 
 

R. Procedure for Requesting FMLA Leave – All employees requesting FMLA leave 
must provide verbal or written notice of the need for the leave to the Human 
Resources Officer. Within five business days after the employee has provided 
this notice, the Human Resources Officer will complete and provide the 
employee with the DOL Notice of Eligibility and Rights.  When the need for FMLA 
leave is foreseeable, the employee must provide the employer with at least 30 
days' notice. When an employee becomes aware of a need for FMLA leave less 
than 30 days in advance, the employee must provide notice of the need for the 
FMLA leave either the same day the need for leave is discovered or the next 
business day. When the need for FMLA leave is not foreseeable, the employee 
must comply with the Town’s usual and customary notice and procedural 
requirements for requesting leave, absent unusual circumstances.  

 
S. Designation of FMLA Leave – Within five business days after the employee has 

submitted the appropriate certification form, the Human Resources Officer will 
complete and provide the employee with a written response to the employee’s 
request for FMLA leave using the DOL Designation Notice.  

 
T. Intent to Return to Work from FMLA Leave – On a basis that does not 

discriminate against employees on FMLA leave, the Town may require an 
employee on FMLA leave to report periodically on the employee’s status and 
intent to return to work. 

 
 
 
 
Section 7. Military Leave 
 
The Town will fully comply with the requirements of the Uniformed Services Employment 
and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA), as the same may from time to time be amended, 
and other related federal regulations, and will administer military absences in accordance 
with those applicable provisions.   
 
Section 8. Leave Without Pay 
 
Upon the prior approval of the Town Manager, an employee may be granted a leave of 
absence without pay not to exceed 12 workweeks in any 12 month period for reasons 
including, but not limited to, exhaustion of FMLA Leave, personal or family illness, 
completion of education or special work which would permit the Town to profit by the 
experience gained or the work performed, or such other reasons as may be approved by 
the Town Manager, in his or her sole discretion.  
 
During any period of leave without pay, the employee shall be responsible for paying his or 
her entire insurance premiums, shall not accumulate additional sick or annual leave, and 
shall not be eligible for merit increases. 
 

Commented [JJ4]: The Workers’ Compensation section 
that is currently within Article VIII Benefits will be 
moved to this Article. 

Commented [JJ5]: Deleted specifics so that we don’t 
have to monitor for compliance as the law is amended. 

Commented [JJ6]: Simplified and reduced the amount 
of time from 6 months. Town Manager discretion has 
been in place on this. 

59



 

16 
 

Section 9. Administrative Leave 
 
The Town Manager shall have the authority to place an employee on administrative leave, 
either with or without pay, for a period of time to be determined at the Town Manager's 
discretion. Administrative leave without pay can only be used in conjunction with the 
Town’s disciplinary policy. 
 
 
Section 10. Court/Civil Leave 
 
A Town employee shall receive leave with pay for any required absence due to the 
following:  (1) jury duty, (2) court-ordered testimony related to his or her Town duties, or 
(3) court-ordered testimony as a witness for the federal or state government, or any 
subdivision thereof. In such circumstances the employee may keep fees and travel 
allowances received for jury or witness duty in additional to regular compensation. While 
on court or civil leave, benefits and leave shall accrue as though on regular duty. 
 
 
Section 11. Voluntary Shared Leave 
 
Prolonged medical conditions can result in employees exhausting all available annual and 
sick leave and having to be out on leave without pay. It is recognized that employees forced 
to go on leave without pay could be without income at the most critical point in their work 
life. It is also recognized that fellow employees may wish to voluntarily donate some of 
their accumulated or accrued leave so as to provide assistance to a fellow Town employee. 
The Town Manager is authorized to adopt a Voluntary Shared Leave Policy in order to 
allow one employee to assist another employee in case of a prolonged medical condition 
that results in exhaustion of all accumulated leave.  
 
 
Section 12. Effect of Adverse Weather and Emergency Conditions on Leave 
 
The Town has responsibility for providing emergency services and maintaining public 
streets.  Adequate staff are required to operate these critical services seven days per week 
and 24 hours per day (24/7) in all weather conditions. The Town Manager, upon 
recommendation of department heads, should designate which staff are in critical positions 
and required to report to work regardless of weather or other hazardous conditions. 
 
Town offices and departments shall remain open for the full scheduled working day unless 
authorization for closing or other deviation is received from the Town Manager’s office.  
The Town Manager will consider the hazard of driving conditions and other relevant 
factors in determining whether to close Town offices. To the extent possible, all 
departments and offices will be given as much advance notice as is reasonable under the 
circumstances for any authorized closing of non-critical Town functions.  Employees in 
non-critical positions who leave work before an official early closing time, as well as those 

Commented [JJ7]: Authorizes the Town Manager to 
adopt a Voluntary Shared Leave Policy.  

60



 

17 
 

employees who report for work late or do not report for work because of hazardous 
conditions may use earned annual leave for days or hours not worked.  
 
Employees in designated critical positions may be subject to disciplinary action for failure 
to report to work as required.  
 
Z:\Administration\Human Resources\Personnel Policy\Article VI - Holidays and Leave - January 2019.docx 

61



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019  

SUBJECT: Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning Request for Barkley 
Terrace Subdivision on Wheeler Road 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Certificate of Sufficiency 
 Staff Analysis on the Annexation 

Voluntary Annexation Petition and Related Materials 
Recorded Plat showing the Annexation Area 

    Application for Initial Zoning of R-2  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The developer of the subdivision that is to be located on Wheeler Road and now known as 
Barkley Terrace received approval of a water allocation from Town Council. Town Council’s 
expectation was that this property would be developed outside of the Town limits but 
ultimately annex into the Town. As requested by Town Council, Cane Creek Vistas, LLC, the 
property owner, has submitted a voluntary annexation petition and a zoning map 
amendment application requesting an initial zoning of R-2 if the property is to be annexed 
into the Town’s municipal limits. 

At its last meet Town Council adopted a resolution moving the annexation petition forward 
with various direction to the Town Clerk, Town Planner and Planning and Zoning Board. 

The Town Clerk has verified the sufficiency of the annexation petition and submits his 
Certificate of Sufficiency. The Planning and Zoning Board has, at the request of Town 
Council, reviewed the requested zoning map amendment to designate the property as R-2 if 
it is annexed and is prepared to submit its recommendation during the public hearing on 
the matter.  Staff has also looked at various implications of annexing the property and the 
Town Planner provides his analysis to the Mayor and Town Council for consideration. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council discussion on whether to proceed with the annexation petition.  

Should Town Council wish to proceed with the process to annex this property then it 
must set public hearings for both the annexation and the related zoning map 
amendment. Town Council is, however, not under any obligation to proceed with the 
annexation and could release the property owner from the previously imposed 
condition requiring the property to be annexed into the Town’s municipal limits. 

62



63



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Wheeler Road Voluntary 
Annexation and Initial Zoning 

Prepared December 2018 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Barkley Terrace Plat Bk 193, Pg 190; Order of Buncombe 
County Board of Adjustment in the Matter of Wheeler Road; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic 
Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Zoning Analysis 
 
In short, the Town does not currently possess a residential zoning district in which the lots 
created for the Wheeler Road project would be conforming to the dimensional requirements 
established therein. Most of the lots are shown to be approximately 3,000 square feet and with 
a lot width of 29 feet. The R-3 zoning district provides a minimum lot area of 5,445 and lot 
width of 75 feet and would provide the least degree of lot nonconformity. However, given that 
the lots are nonconforming regardless of the zoning district prescribed, staff recommended R-2 
with a minimum lot area of 7,500 and lot width of 75 feet in order to avoid the property being 
used for the purpose of housing manufactured homes and to provide zoning district contiguity 
with the neighboring Partridge Berry Lane development. 
 
An examination of the Order by the Buncombe County Board of Adjustment establishing the 
Wheeler Road project provides conformities related to height at 35 feet or below and parking 
with two spaces provided for each dwelling unit. 
 
It should be noted that each Special Use Permit or Special Exception the Town has issued for a 
proposed residential development is by definition noncompliant with the dimensional 
requirements found within the underlying zoning district. These developments include but are 
not limited to the following: 
 

• Brown Street, single family home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Creekside Village, single and multifamily home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Hamburg Crossing, multifamily home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Kyfields, multifamily home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Partridge Berry Lane, single family home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Reems Creek Town Homes, multifamily home project with reduced lot sizes 
• Water Point Way, single family home project with reduced lot sizes 

 
Here the difference is the project was approved by the Buncombe County Board of Adjustment 
rather than the Town’s Zoning Board of Adjustment. However, the same quasi-judicial process 
was followed in order to collect and examine evidence to be considered against a substantially 

64



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Wheeler Road Voluntary 
Annexation and Initial Zoning 

Prepared December 2018 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Barkley Terrace Plat Bk 193, Pg 190; Order of Buncombe 
County Board of Adjustment in the Matter of Wheeler Road; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic 
Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

similar set of standards the Town had previously applied to each of the aforementioned 
developments.  
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 
 
When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it 
is found that this property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses 
of Industrial, Residential and Rural. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the 
CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the 
defined areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the 
uncertainties that exist on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the 
need for flexibility. And so, the boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than 
lines in the sand, and the final decisions on transitional land use types in these areas should be 
left to the good judgement of the appointed and elected officials that are charged with 
establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 
 
Additionally, found on page 2-2, it is the stated goal of the Town to “promote the stability of 
existing residential neighborhoods while fostering a diversity of housing opportunities.” It was 
found when compiling information for the update of the CLUP that the median housing value 
for dwelling units within the jurisdiction was $335,000 up 39% from the previous median value 
found in 2010. Information contained on the voluntary annexation petition submitted to the 
Town suggests that the average sale price of the 61 units would be $225,000. This represents a 
price point 32.8% below the average home value and provides some diversity in the Town’s 
housing stock. Furthermore, an implementation strategy toward this end found on page 3-36 
suggests the Town “study the adoption of an incentive based approach (such as density 
bonuses) to promote mix of housing options in new residential developments.”  
 
Given each of the listed variables, it is the opinion of staff that the development proposed for 
annexation is consistent with the Town’s CLUP. 
 

65



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Wheeler Road Voluntary 
Annexation and Initial Zoning 

Prepared December 2018 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Barkley Terrace Plat Bk 193, Pg 190; Order of Buncombe 
County Board of Adjustment in the Matter of Wheeler Road; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic 
Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Strategic Plan Compliance 
 
Within the Town’s Strategic Plan (SP) a parallel sentiment toward fostering a diversity of 
housing opportunities is found. Town Council identified “affordable housing – mixed income 
housing, additional housing opportunities” within a list of 3-5 year visioning found on page 3 of 
the SP. Additionally, a similar statement is made within the list of 15-20 year visioning found on 
page 4 of the SP and reads as follows, “self-sustaining, vibrant community with a mix of young, 
old, long-term and new residents with a common bond of living in a safe space that meets their 
needs.” It was found when compiling information for the update of the CLUP that the Town’s 
median age was the eldest at 52.6 years of age and home values the highest at $335,000 of all 
jurisdictions studied in both Buncombe and Madison Counties. One could reason that 
additional housing stock being brought to market at 32.8% below the average home value could 
invite a younger population to become invested in the Town hence forwarding the stated 
visions adopted by Town Council. 
 
Taxation and Water Revenue Generated  
 
Beginning with the assumption that the properties will be evaluated at a similar figure to the 
listed average sale price of $225,000 shown on the voluntary annexation petition provided to 
the Town and accounting for the 61 units proposed, the Town of Weaverville can expect an 
approximate annual revenue through municipal taxation of $52,155 from the proposed project 
based upon the current tax rate of 38 cents per $100 of evaluation. 
 
For the purpose of forecasting water revenue to be generated, staff has pulled the water billing 
history of three addresses on Yarrow Meadow Road. This location was chosen due to the 
similarities of the two projects (small single family homes with reduced lot sizes) making it a 
comparable project with a probable similar water consumption rate. The average water and 
sewer bill balance for these three addresses over the previous three months was calculated to 
be $43.85 and this figure must be reduced by approximately 50% to account for the portion of 
the bill which is provided for MSD sewer service giving us $21.92, or more simply $22 for this 
analysis. Applying this forecasting toward our proposed 61 units provides an estimated provides 
a calculation of approximately $1,342 of monthly water revenue with current in-town water 
rates applied. We double this figure, in the event the property is not annexed, to account for 

66



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Wheeler Road Voluntary 
Annexation and Initial Zoning 

Prepared December 2018 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Barkley Terrace Plat Bk 193, Pg 190; Order of Buncombe 
County Board of Adjustment in the Matter of Wheeler Road; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic 
Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

the double out-of-town water rate which provides an approximate monthly water revenue of 
$2,684. 

Approximate Annual Revenue Generated 
Within Municipal Borders Outside Municipal Borders 

Annual Taxation: $52,155 Annual Taxation: $0 
Annual Water Revenue: $16,104 Annual Water Revenue: $32,208 
Total Revenue: $68,259 Total Revenue: $32,208 
   
Given that the water has been allocated and the project will be constructed regardless of 
annexation, it is fair to bring to attention that the project will generate less than 50% of 
approximate revenue to the Town of Weaverville should Council choose to not incorporate the 
properties. 
 
Service Provision 
 
Cost of recycling collection passed entirely to the property owner at a rate of $2.66 per water bill.  
 
Statements related to the anticipated cost of service provision have been provided by the Fire, Police 
and Public Works Departments and are attached hereto.  
 

Approximate Cost of Service Provision 
Fire: Service Currently provided through North 

Buncombe Fire District 
Police: $800, plus 115 man-hours 
Public Works: $18,422, plus long range road maintenance 

costs 
 
Other Considerations 
 
The 2016 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.12 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the proposed 61 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 129 people should Town Council annex the property. 
 
Should Town Council annex the property, said annexation would be a satellite annexation. This property 
is contiguous to an existing satellite meaning the total number of acres of satellite annexed areas would 

67



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Wheeler Road Voluntary 
Annexation and Initial Zoning 

Prepared December 2018 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Barkley Terrace Plat Bk 193, Pg 190; Order of Buncombe 
County Board of Adjustment in the Matter of Wheeler Road; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic 
Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

increase to 43.27 acres up from 37.54. This would also increase the percentage of total incorporated 
area outside of the contiguous municipal borders to 2.1% up from 1.8% with a statutory limitation of 
10% on satellite annexations. It has also been found that the proposed satellite annexation area is 
within three miles of the primary municipal limits and no closer to a neighboring jurisdiction thus 
satisfying additional requirements of State Statute related to voluntary satellite annexation. Should the 
conversation trend in this direction, it should be known that the accepted understanding under State 
Statute is that if any part of a platted subdivision is within the proposed annexed area, the entire 
subdivision must be included within the annexation.  
 
 
 
 

68



From: Dale Pennell
To: James Eller
Cc: Dale Pennell
Subject: RE: Wheeler Road Annexation
Date: Thursday, January 17, 2019 2:24:24 PM

James,
 
Here is the input from PW about the proposed Wheeler Road Annexation as requested.
 
Streets

·         The street design was reviewed and approved by PW.  The construction was inspected by
PW staff and determined to be in compliance with the approved plans.  We can recommend
that the roads be taken over and added to our list of town maintained streets.

·         As new streets, we would anticipate that the life of the pavement should be minimum of 15
years and anticipated to be 20 years before any repaving would be needed, assuming that
no pavement damage occurs during the construction of the new homes.

 
Storm Drainage

·         The storm water design was reviewed and approved by PW and Buncombe County.  The
storm drainage system within the proposed road right-of-way (R/W) was installed in
conjunction with the road construction.  The construction was inspected by PW staff and
determined to be in compliance with the approved plans. We can recommend that the
storm drainage system, within the right-of-way, be taken over and maintained by the town. 
Any part of the storm drainage system outside the  R/W must be owned and maintained by
others, such as the developer or home-owners association.  Buncombe County requires that
a maintenance agreement and an operation & maintenance plan be recorded by the
developer for this storm water system, naming the responsible party.

·         As a new storm drainage system, we would anticipate little or no maintenance costs for 20
years, assuming that proper erosion control measures are in place during the construction of
the new homes.

 
Water System

·         The water design was reviewed and approved by PW and NCDEQ Public Water Supply
Section.  The water system within the proposed road right-of-way (R/W) was installed in
conjunction with the road construction.  The construction was inspected by PW staff and
determined to be in compliance with the approved plans, and proper certificates of
completion were submitted and approved by the state. We can recommend that the water
system be taken over and maintained by the town.

·         As a new water system, we would anticipate little or no maintenance for 20 years, assuming
that no damage occurs during the construction of the new homes.

·         The only cost that we anticipate is the reading of 61 water meters upon completion of the
new homes, and the billing efforts to prepare water bills.  Since the water meters are battery
operated “radio read” meters, the only cost to read the meters is to drive through the
development once per month, then download the readings and produce the bills at town
hall.  However, we plan to serve these 61 homes whether they are annexed or not;

69

mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org


therefore, meter reading, water maintenance, or water production would not be an extra
cost for either option.  Of course, if they remain out of town, then double water rates would
apply.

 
Sanitation

·         Our 2018-19 budget in the sanitation division of PW is $625,672.  My latest report in
December 2018 to town council listed the total number of pick-up points (residential-1,914,
business-72 and set-outs-82) as 2068, or approximately $302 per year per pick-up point. 
Using this annual figure, 61 additional residential homes should cost approximately $18,422
annually.  Each pick-up point assumes collection of weekly garbage with periodic brush and
leaves, with occasional additional visits for appliances.

 
Recreation

·         There should be no additional cost to provide recreation services for 61 additional homes,
as the same maintenance is provided to the Nature Park and Lake Louise whether visitors
are from in-town or out-of-town.

 
Please review this summary and let me know if additional information is needed.
 
Thanks, Dale
 
Dale Pennell, PE, PLS
Public Works Director
Town of Weaverville
15 Quarry Road
Weaverville, NC  28787
828-645-0606 Office
828-231-7050 Cell
 

From: James Eller 
Sent: Thursday, January 10, 2019 11:14 AM
To: Dale Pennell; Ted Williams; Ron Davis
Cc: Selena Coffey
Subject: Wheeler Road Annexation
 
All,
 
At the direction of the Town Manger I am writing seeking information from your departments
related to the cost of service provision for parcels and future homes within a possible annexation
area. Said proposed annexation area is the Wheeler Road project and attached you will find a plat
for the development.
 
Also attached you will find a preliminary staff report I have begun and into which we wish to import
your information should it be of any use to you. To the degree that it may be taken into
consideration, I think it prudent to account for the fact that we are currently providing services to
the neighboring properties on Partridge Berry, an additional satellite annexation at Hamburg

70



Crossings and other properties within the Dorf development and Reems Creek Golf Course.
 
Please return your assessments on or before January 17 to allow time for staff review and inclusion

in the packet of information distributed to Town Council for their meeting on the 28th. Thank you for
your time and consideration and please feel free to contact me if I may provide any additional
information or assistance.
 
James W. Eller, NCAZO
Planning Director
Town of Weaverville
 

71



From: Ted Williams
To: James Eller
Cc: Selena Coffey
Subject: RE: Wheeler Road Annexation
Date: Thursday, January 10, 2019 11:34:18 AM

James
 
We already provide service to that location so from a service delivery aspect it will not be any
different for us either way. That said I would point out that in town our services are part of the taxes
collected by the town but the areas we provide service to outside of town pays a .12 per 100
valuation tax to the North Buncombe fire district which in turn comes to the town via buncombe
county for said fire protection.
 
Please let me know if you need any additional or any clarification?
 
Thanks
 

Ted Williams
Fire Chief
Weaverville Fire Department
(828)645-3500 ext. 1801
(828)484-7031 Direct
(828)658-9868 Fax
(828)545-2823 Cell
 
 
 

From: James Eller 
Sent: Thursday, January 10, 2019 11:14 AM
To: Dale Pennell <dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org>; Ted Williams <TWilliams@weavervillefd.org>;
Ron Davis <rdavis@weavervillenc.org>
Cc: Selena Coffey <SCoffey@weavervillenc.org>
Subject: Wheeler Road Annexation
 
All,
 
At the direction of the Town Manger I am writing seeking information from your departments
related to the cost of service provision for parcels and future homes within a possible annexation
area. Said proposed annexation area is the Wheeler Road project and attached you will find a plat
for the development.
 
Also attached you will find a preliminary staff report I have begun and into which we wish to import
your information should it be of any use to you. To the degree that it may be taken into

72

mailto:TWilliams@weavervillefd.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org


consideration, I think it prudent to account for the fact that we are currently providing services to
the neighboring properties on Partridge Berry, an additional satellite annexation at Hamburg
Crossings and other properties within the Dorf development and Reems Creek Golf Course.
 
Please return your assessments on or before January 17 to allow time for staff review and inclusion

in the packet of information distributed to Town Council for their meeting on the 28th. Thank you for
your time and consideration and please feel free to contact me if I may provide any additional
information or assistance.
 
James W. Eller, NCAZO
Planning Director
Town of Weaverville
 

73



   Weaverville Police Department 
 
        30 South Main Street 

        Post Office Box 338       
                                                                  Weaverville, NC 28787 
   
 
 
 
James, 
 
 
In response to your request regarding the possible voluntary annexation of the Wheeler Road development a cost 
impact study was completed as well as a site survey.  Based on other “like” subdivisions, calls for service and 
required extra patrols, I feel this annexation could be achieved with minimal associated cost to the department as it 
relates to law enforcement.  As a matter of fact there are other developments we already patrol closer to, and 
further away from, the project under consideration.  Further this project is relatively close as it relates to response 
times and mileage.  However, given the small lot size and relatively limited amount of road frontage each proposed 
home, I do foresee issues such as parking and noise complaints being the main issue.  While the estimate of calls 
for service would be fairly subjective given the information we have, I do not anticipate calls for service that would 
be unduly burdensome on the department.  Again, based on other similar neighborhoods I anticipate we will patrol 
this new subdivision at least 1,100-1,400 times per year while taking at least 5 minutes to adequately patrol each 
time which should be enough to maintain a regular presence; this does not consider any other issues which might 
arise that I have previously discussed.   
 
I have estimated fuel, maintenance to be the following per year: 
 
Fuel: $ 500.00 
 
Maintenance: $ 300.00 
 
Man hours:115 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Ron Davis 
Chief 
 
 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 28, 2019 

SUBJECT: Proposed Code Amendments – Nuisances 

PRESENTER:  Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Ordinance Amending Town Code Chapter 9 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Staff has been working on amendments to Town Code regarding regulation of nuisances 
since Town Council began considering the matter on July 16, 2018.  The topic has also been 
discussed at meetings of Town Council on September 17, 2018 and January 8, 2019. The 
draft ordinance repeals and replaces the current nuisance provisions and contains articles 
outlining general provisions and providing regulation of public health nuisances, 
abandoned and junked motor vehicles, and noise. The amendments are proposed in order 
to strengthen the provisions and conform to statutory requirements. 

In light of Town Council conversations, the proposed general regulations focus on 
situations that affect the general public. As an example, prohibited public health nuisances 
are limited only to: “any condition, situation, or persistent activity that is dangerous or 
prejudicial to the health or safety of the general public by: (1) posing a risk of illness or 
disease; (2) causing or posing a risk of an infestation of insects, rodents, or other dangerous 
pests; (3) posing a health or safety threat to the general public, or (4) posing a risk of injury 
to the general public.” Likewise, the removal of a junked vehicle from private property 
without the permission of the property owner is only authorized if the vehicle is a public 
health nuisance or the vehicle is a traffic hazard. 

It is important to note that should Town Council encounter a situation that it deems a 
nuisance that is not prohibited by its general regulations , it can take action to adopt an 
ordinance concerning that specific property or circumstance under authority granted by 
NCGS 160A-174. This statute gives the Town the right to “by ordinance, define, prohibit, 
regulate, or abate acts, omissions, or conditions, detrimental to the health, safety, or 
welfare of its citizens and the peace and dignity of the [Town], and may define and abate 
nuisances.” 

Staff will be present tonight to further discuss these amendments and to assist the Mayor 
and Town Council in its discussions concerning this matter.  

Town Council may take action tonight to adopt the ordinance as presented or with 
amendments that Town Council deems appropriate.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council action is requested on the proposed Code amendments. 

89



 

Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING  
WEAVERVILLE TOWN CODE CHAPTER 9 CONCERNING NUISANCES 

 

 WHEREAS, Town Council of the Town of Weaverville wishes to exercise its 
authority under N.C. Gen. Stat. §§ 160A-174 and 160A-193 in order declare certain 
conditions, situations and activities as nuisances and prohibit, regulate, and provide for the 
removal, abatement, or remedy of the same; and  

 WHEREAS, Town Council also wishes to exercise its authority under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 
160A-303 in order to regulate certain abandoned and junked motor vehicles in order to 
protect the health and safety of its residents; 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 9 of the Weaverville Town Code contains the Town’s regulation 
of nuisances and it is the desire of Town Council to repeal and replace that Chapter with 
new regulations;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, as follows: 

1. Chapter 9 is hereby repealed and replaced with the following: 
 

CHAPTER 9 – NUISANCES 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Sec. 9-100. – Title. 

This Chapter 9 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances may be referred to as the Town’s nuisance ordinance 
or public nuisance ordinance. 

Sec. 9-101. – Administration. 

The town’s law enforcement officers, code enforcement officer, and the town manager, or his or her 
designee, shall be responsible for the administration and enforcement of this chapter. The board of 
adjustment shall be the appeals board for all decisions made under this chapter unless otherwise 
provided. 

Sec. 9-102. – Concurrent jurisdiction. 

Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to limit the legal authority or powers of county health officials 
or officers of the town police department or fire department in enforcing other laws or health 
regulations, or in otherwise carrying out their duties.  

Sec. 9-103. – Violators and chronic violators, defined. 

For the purposes of this chapter, violator means the person creating the violation, the person operating 
any motor vehicle, machinery or equipment causing the violation, the violator’s employer, and/or the 

90



 

Page 2 
 

company, partnership, corporation or other person or entity which owns, possesses or controls the 
motor vehicle, machinery or equipment utilized by the violator. 

A chronic violator is a person who owns property whereupon, in the previous calendar year, the town 
gave notice of violation at least three times under any provision of the town’s public nuisance 
ordinance. 

Sec. 9-104. – Investigation of conditions. 

The person(s) having administrative responsibilities under each article within this chapter, upon notice 
from any person of the existence of any of the conditions described in such article, shall, within a 
reasonable period of time, make or cause to be made such investigation as may be necessary to 
determine whether, in fact, such conditions constitute a violation of this chapter.  

Sec.9-105. – Enforcement and penalties; penalty not exclusive. 

Section 1-6 shall apply to all violations under this chapter. The imposition of a penalty under section 1-6 
of this Code for violations of this chapter shall not prevent the revocation or suspension of any license, 
franchise, or permit issued or granted under the provisions of this Code. 

Any condition designated as a nuisance in violation of this chapter may be summarily abated by the 
town directly or through a private contractor and such summary abatement shall be in addition to the 
civil and criminal penalties and other remedies as provided under section 1-6 of this Code. 

Any town employee charged with enforcement and collection of abatement costs or civil penalties may, 
in consultation with the town manager and town attorney, reduce the penalties or costs assessed, based 
upon criteria set forth in department guidelines.  

Sec. 9-106. – Administrative fee for town abatement. 

An administrative fee in the amount of $100 shall be assessed for all violations under this chapter that 
result in abatement action having to be taken by or on behalf of the town. Such administrative fee is 
considered restorative and is intended to provide compensation to the town for costs associated with 
the town’s code enforcement program, including the cost to monitor, control, prosecute, cure and/or 
correct the violation. As such, the amount declared herein is presumed to provide sufficient restoration 
to the town for its costs. 

Sec. 9-107. – Cost of abatement declared a lien. 

The expense of any enforcement action taken by the town for violations of this chapter shall be paid by 
the person in violation of this article. If the expense is not paid, it shall be a lien on the land or the 
premises where the nuisance occurred and shall have the same priority and be collected as unpaid ad 
valorem taxes.  

Upon completion of such removal and abatement, a statement shall be delivered to the town tax collector 
showing the exact cost of the abatement of the unlawful condition plus the administrative fee of $100 as 
set out in Section 9-106 to cover the cost of notice and costs of collection as a civil penalty. The town tax 
collector shall thereupon mail to the owner of the subject property a bill covering the costs, if with 
reasonable diligence the name and address of such owner can be ascertained, and the amount of the bill 

91



 

Page 3 
 

shall become a lien on the property, and if not paid within 30 days shall be collected as in the manner 
provided for the collection of delinquent taxes.  

Any town employee charged with enforcement and collection of abatement costs or civil penalties may, 
in consultation with the town manager and town attorney, reduce the penalties or costs assessed, based 
upon criteria set forth in department guidelines.  

Sec. 9-108. – Severability. 

Should any section or provision of this chapter be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid, that decision shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part thereof, other 
than the part so declared to be invalid. 

Sec. 9-109. – Conflicts with other provisions of town code. 

In the event of a conflict between a provision of this chapter and any other section of the Town’s Code 
of Ordinance, the more stringent provision shall apply. 

 

ARTICLE II - PUBLIC HEALTH NUISANCES 

Sec. 9-200. – Authority and jurisdiction 

The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that it is necessary to define, prohibit, regulate and summarily 
abate acts, omissions, or conditions that are dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or public 
safety within the Town of Weaverville. The regulations contained within this article are adopted 
pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS § 160A-193 and § 160A-174. 

Sec. 9-201. - Definitions 

For the purposes of this Article, the following definitions apply: 

Nuisance – In general a nuisance is defined as a condition, activity or situation that significantly affects, 
interferes or otherwise negatively impacts another’s ability to use or enjoy their own property and 
which may affect health, safety and welfare. 

Open areas are defined as those areas of property or a portion thereof that is open, including building 
openings of residential dwelling units that are open to the exterior, such as attached carports or 
porches, and any other exterior portions of properties ordinarily exposed to public view.  

Pest – Any animal which has a harmful effect on humans, their food or their living conditions, including, 
but not limited to, those which carry disease-causing micro-organisms and parasites, attack and eat 
crops, damage stored food, attack and eat farm and station animals, damage buildings, bite people. 

Public health nuisance  - A public health nuisance is defined generally as any condition, situation, or 
persistent activity that is dangerous or prejudicial to the health or safety of the general public by: (1) 
posing a risk of illness or disease; (2) causing or posing a risk of an infestation of insects, rodents, or 
other dangerous pests, (3) posing a health or safety threat to the general public, or (4) posing a risk of 
injury to the general public.  

 

92



 

Page 4 
 

Sec. 9-202. – Public health nuisances prohibited; enumeration not exclusive 

Public health nuisances are hereby found, deemed, and declared to be unlawful and prohibited within 
the Town of Weaverville.  

To the extent that the following enumerated and described conditions affect the general public, the 
same are hereby found, deemed, and declared to be public health nuisances wherever the same may 
exist and are hereby unlawful; however, this enumeration shall not be deemed or construed to be 
exclusive, limiting, or restrictive. 

(1) Any condition which constitutes a breeding ground or harbor for rats, mosquitoes, harmful 
insects, snakes, or other pests, or has the potential for becoming a breeding ground or harbor 
for pests. 

(2) Accumulation of carcasses of animals, birds, or fish by failing to bury or otherwise dispose of a 
carcass in a sanitary manner within 24 hours after death. 

(3) Hides, dried or green, provided the same may be kept when thoroughly cured and odorless. 
(4) Any collection of garbage, litter, food waste, human waste, animal waste, or any other rotten 

or putrescible matter of any kind. 
(5) Any condition which blocks, hinders, or obstructs in any way the natural flow of streams, 

branches, creeks, surface waters, ditches, or drains, to the extent that the premises is not free 
from standing water. 

(6) Any improper or inadequate drainage on private property which causes flooding or interferes 
with the use of or endangers in any way the streets, sidewalks, parks, or other town-owned 
property of any kind; provided, the notices required and powers conferred by this article by 
and on the code enforcement officer in abating the nuisances defined by this subsection shall 
be given and exercised by the director of public works. 

(7) Structures, remains of structures, or lots with a condition that is detrimental, dangerous, or 
hazardous to the public safety, health, or welfare. For purposes of the enforcement of this 
section, this shall be a condition which is located in such a way as to endanger the general 
public by unreasonably affecting or interfering with the use of a street or sidewalk, and which 
consists of one or more of the following: 

i. Glass, metal, or other sharp objects in accessible areas; 
ii. Holes, sinkholes, excavations, wells, or embankments without sufficient 

enclosure or covering to prevent persons from injury; 
iii. Surviving foundations, walls, or roofs that may collapse or that create heights of 

3 feet or more in areas where they may be scaled; 
iv. Any substance which is hazardous or harmful to humans or pets; 
v. Any open or accessible utility lines such as natural gas, water, sewer, or 

electrical; 
vi. Structures or remains of structures open to the elements, which are a danger to 

children, tend to attract vagrants or persons intent on criminal activities or 
other activities that would constitute a public nuisance; 

vii. Structures ordered closed by a code compliance officer or other quasi-judicial 
authority which are reopened without cause or justification; 

viii. Structures, properties, or conditions posing a fire danger; 
ix. Structures, properties, or conditions likely to become a breeding place or 

habitat for rats, snakes or other pests. 
 

93



 

Page 5 
 

Any owner of property who is in non-compliance with this subsection may enclose the 
portions of their property in violation with a secure fence of 5 feet in height in order to 
prevent the entry of humans until such time as the property is repaired to Code standards or 
completely demolish and is no longer in a detrimental, dangerous or hazardous state.  Such 
enclosed shall be deemed in compliance with this subsection provided the enclosed nuisance 
condition does not and will not reach beyond the perimeter of the property. 

(8) Any accumulation of mud or debris on a street related to a construction, timbering, or other 
similar land use project; violator will be given 24 hours to clean or clear the street, however, if 
it is found by the town that the situation is causing a clear and present danger or hazard to 
traffic or the general public, such cleaning or clearing may be required to take place as soon 
after notification as practicable. 

(9) Any growth or overgrowth of grass, weeds, or other vegetation that is greater than 12 inches 
on the average, except as provided below: 
 

i. Natural landscape areas or wooded lots. This requirement shall not apply to lots 
that have never been cleared in anticipation of development, lots that have been 
landscaped or replanted to appear as natural, lots covered with trees, undeveloped 
areas. Natural landscape areas and wooded lots shall be maintained and shall not 
harbor, create, nor allow to exist any condition defined as a nuisance or determined 
by the code enforcement officer to be a condition which poses a health hazard for 
the general welfare of the public. Natural landscape vegetation shall not overhang 
into the street right-of-way. 

ii. Ravines, creek banks, steep slopes. This requirement shall not apply to those 
properties, or those portions of properties, consisting of land features such as 
ravines, creek banks or steep slopes where maintenance would be unsafe and/or 
the chance of erosion would increase if the vegetation were decreased. 

iii. Lots exceeding one acre is size. This requirement shall not apply to any lot exceeding 
one acre in size, or any combined parcels under common ownership that exceed 
one acre in size, except that such lot(s) must comply with the requirements of this 
subsection to a depth of 10 feet from the street or sidewalk and the vegetation on 
such lots must be cut at least twice a year.  

iv. Hay production. This requirement shall not apply to any property that is cultivating 
hay for use or sale as an agricultural commodity. 

v. Ornamental grasses. Ornamental grasses chosen for features like color and form, 
including but not limited to switch grass, pampas grass, and bamboo, shall not be 
treated as nuisance vegetation under this section. 
 

(10) Any and all grass or weeds growing in any sidewalk or street, any hedges or plantings 
bordering thereon not properly trimmed, or any accumulation of dead weeds, grass, brush, or 
undergrowth located on the sidewalk or in street (other than items set out for yard debris 
removal by the Town); 

(11) Any and all trees or bushes that are dead, diseased, or not properly trimmed, and which 
present a clear and present danger or hazard to streets and sidewalks and the pedestrian and 
motoring public. 

(12) Any object or vegetative growth within the sight distance at or near street rights-of-way as the 
same constitutes a hazard to the town and the health and safety of motorists and pedestrians. 

94



 

Page 6 
 

(13) Any growth of noxious vegetation, including poison sumac (Rhus vernix), poison ivy (Rhus 
radicans), or poison oak (Rhus toxicodendron), in a location likely to be accessible to the 
general public. 

(14) Any other condition specifically prohibited in this article, or any other condition specifically 
declared by town council to be a public health nuisance. 
 

Sec. 9-203. – Notice to abate. 

If any person shall violate the provisions of this article, it shall be the duty of the town to give notice to 
the owner or to any person in possession of the subject property, as provided in section 9-205, directing 
that all unlawful conditions existing on the property be abated within 10 days from the date of such 
notice, except as provided in section 9-204 below. 

The notice of abatement shall contain the following: 

a. A statement that conditions exists on the property which constitute a public health 
nuisance; 

b. The condition existing; 
c. The location of such condition; 
d. A statement ordering the owner and the occupant or person in possession of the 

premises to abate the nuisance, and that, unless the condition is abated within 10 days 
(or such other reasonable period of time for abatement) from the mailing of the notice 
as specified in section 9-205, the conditions constituting a nuisance will be abated by 
the town and the cost of abatement shall constitute a lien against the premises; 

e. A statement indicated how and with whom an appeal from the notice of abatement can 
be filed. 
 

Sec. 9-204. – Emergency abatement by town. 

If, in the opinion of the code enforcement officer, the unlawful condition is such that it is of imminent 
danger or peril to the public, then any authorized representative of the town may, without notice, 
proceed to abate the same, and the cost thereof shall be charged against the property as is provided in 
this article. 

The code enforcement officer or a law enforcement officer may enter upon the premises for the 
purpose of abating the nuisance and may summarily remove, abate, or remedy any condition in the 
town limits that is a prohibited nuisance under this article. 

Sec. 9-205. – Service of  notice to abate. 

The owner and/or occupant of subject property shall be notified of violation of this article by personal 
delivery of said notice or by posting in a conspicuous place on the premises affected and by regular and 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If such registered or certified notice is refused or is 
returned unclaimed, but the regular mail is not returned by the post office within 10 days after the mailing, 
the service shall be deemed sufficient. The person mailing such order by regular mail shall certify that fact 
and the date thereof and such certificate shall be deemed conclusive in the absence of fraud. If the name 
of the owner cannot be ascertained, then the notice shall be served on any person in possession of the 
subject property.  

95



 

Page 7 
 

Any such notice may be served by any authorized representative of the town manager, the code 
enforcement officer or by any law enforcement officer of the town. 

The town may notify a chronic violator of the town's public nuisance ordinance that, if the violator's 
property is found to be in violation of the ordinance, the town shall, without further notice in the calendar 
year in which notice is given, take action to remedy the violation, and the expense of the action shall 
become a lien upon the property and shall be collected as unpaid taxes. The notice shall be sent by 
registered or certified mail.  

Sec. 9-206. – Defect in notice not to affect lien. 

Any defect in the method of giving notice required by this section, or in the form thereof, or the giving 
of such notice to an improper person, shall not prevent the town, in any case where the work of abating 
an unlawful condition upon any property is caused by the town, from collecting the cost thereof from 
the owner, nor shall it affect the validity of the lien on the property for such cost. 

Sec. 9-207. – Appeal notice. 

Within the time frame stated in the notice to abate, the owner or occupant of the property where the 
nuisance exists may appeal the findings of the town manager, his or her designee, or the code 
enforcement officer to the Weaverville Board of Adjustment by giving written notice of appeal to such 
officer signing the notice to abate. An appeal stays the abatement of the nuisances until a final 
determination by the board of adjustment. In the event no appeal is taken, the town may proceed to 
abate the nuisance.  

Sec. 9-208. – Appeal hearing; determination by the board of adjustment. 

In the event an appeal is filed as provided in this article, the board of adjustment, after hearing all 
interested persons and reviewing the findings of the town manager, his or her designee or the code 
enforcement officer, may affirm or reverse the finding that a nuisance exists in the town. If the board of 
adjustment shall determine that the findings are correct and proper, it shall adopt an order specifically 
declaring the condition existing on the property to be a danger and hazard to the health and safety of 
the inhabitants of the town and a public health nuisance and direct the town to cause such conditions to 
be abated.  

Sec. 9-209. – Abatement by town where owner fails to abate. 

Upon the failure of the owner or person in possession of any premises to abate an unlawful condition 
existing thereupon within the time prescribed, it shall be the duty of an authorized town representative 
to cause the removal and abatement of such unlawful condition therefrom.  The town manager, code 
enforcement officer, law enforcement officer, or authorized town representative are hereby given full 
power and authority to enter upon the premises upon which a nuisance is found to exist under the 
provisions of this article for the purpose of abating the nuisance and may summarily remove, abate, or 
remedy any condition in the town limits that is a prohibited nuisance under this article. 

Sec. 9-210. – Cost of abatement declared a lien. 

The expense of any enforcement action taken by the town for violations of this article shall be paid by 
the person in violation of this article. If the expense is not paid, it shall be a lien on the land or the 

96



 

Page 8 
 

premises where the nuisance occurred and shall have the same priority and be collected as unpaid ad 
valorem taxes.  

Upon completion of such removal and abatement, a statement shall be delivered to the town tax collector 
showing the exact cost of the abatement of the unlawful condition plus the administrative fee of $100 as 
set out in Section 9-106 to cover the cost of notice and costs of collection as a civil penalty. The town tax 
collector shall thereupon mail to the owner of the subject property a bill covering the costs, if with 
reasonable diligence the name and address of such owner can be ascertained, and the amount of the bill 
shall become a lien on the property, and if not paid within 30 days shall be collected as in the manner 
provided for the collection of delinquent taxes.  

 

ARTICLE III - ABANDONED AND  JUNKED MOTOR VEHICLES 

Sec. 9-300. – Authority and jurisdiction. 

The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that regulation of abandoned and junked motor vehicles is 
necessary and desirable to protect the health and safety of the residents of the Town of Weaverville. 
The regulations contained within this article are adopted pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS 
§ 160A-303. 

Sec. 9-301. – Administration. 

The chief of police and code enforcement officer, and their designees, shall be responsible for the 
administration and enforcement of this article.  

The chief of police, or his or her designee, is authorized to designate a motor vehicle as an abandoned 
motor vehicle as defined in this article, and shall be responsible for administering the removal and 
disposition of vehicles determined to be abandoned on the streets and highways within the town and on 
property owned or operated by the town. The chief of police shall further be responsible for 
administering the removal and disposition of vehicles designated as abandoned and/or junked motor 
vehicles from private property.  

The town may contract with private tow companies to remove, store, and dispose of abandoned motor 
vehicles and junked motor vehicles in compliance with this article and applicable North Carolina law.  

Sec. 9-302. – Administrative search and inspection warrants. 

The authorized officials, upon notice from any person of the existence of any of the conditions described 
in this article, shall make or cause to be made such investigation as may be necessary to determine 
whether, in fact, such conditions constitute a violation of this article. 

The authorized officials are authorized to secure an administrative search and inspection warrant, as 
provided by NCGS 15-27.2, in order to conduct any  necessary inspection of the premises on which an 
abandoned motor vehicle or junked motor vehicle may be located and to obtain evidence to determine 
whether there is any violation of any provisions of this article.   

 

 

97



 

Page 9 
 

Sec. 9-303. – Immunity. 

In accordance with NCGS 160A-303(f), no person shall be held to answer in any civil or criminal action to 
any owner or other person legally entitled to the possession of any abandoned, lost, or stolen motor 
vehicle for disposing of the vehicle as provided in this article. 

Sec. 9-304. – Definitions. 

Abandoned motor vehicle means any motor vehicle: 

(1) left upon a street or highway in violation of the law or ordinance regulating or prohibiting 
parking; or  

(2) left on property owned or operated by the Town for longer than 24 hours; or  
(3) left in any Town owned or operated parking lot for longer than 7 days; or  
(4) left on any street or highway for longer than 7 days or is determined by law enforcement to 

be a hazard to the motoring public; or  
(5) left on private property without the consent of the owner, occupant, or lessee thereof for 

longer than 2 hours.  
 

Authorized officials are the chief of police and the code enforcement officer, and their respective 
designees. 

Junked motor vehicle means a vehicle that does not display a current license plate and one of the follow 
conditions is present: 

(1) is partially dismantled or wrecked; or 
(2) cannot be self-propelled or moved in the manner in which it was originally intended to 

move; or 
(3) is more than 5 years old and appears to be worth less than $500. 

 

Motor vehicle is defined to include all machines designed or intended to travel over land or water by 
self-propulsion or which attached to any self-propelled vehicle. Use of the term vehicle and trailer in this 
article shall mean motor vehicle. For purposes of this article an electric personal assistive mobility device 
as defined in NCGS § 20-4.01(7b) is not a motor vehicle.  

Sec. 9-305. – Exemptions. 

This article does not apply to any motor vehicle in an enclosed building or any motor vehicle on the 
premises of a business enterprise being operated in a lawful place and manner if the vehicle is necessary 
to the operation of the enterprise, or to any motor vehicle in an appropriate storage place or depository 
maintained in a lawful place and manner by the town.  

Sec. 9-306. – Abandoned motor vehicles unlawful. 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of the vehicle to allow 
any abandoned or junked motor vehicle to remain on any public street, public property, or private 
property in violation of this article.  

98



 

Page 10 
 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of an abandoned 
motor vehicle, or for the owner, lessee, or occupant of the real property upon which an abandoned 
motor vehicle is located to leave or allow the motor vehicle to remain on the property after the motor 
vehicle has been ordered removed. 

Sec. 9-307. – Removal of abandoned motor vehicles from public streets and public property. 

Any abandoned motor vehicle on the public streets or public property may be removed by or under the 
direction of a law enforcement officer or a code enforcement officer. Notice of each removal shall be 
given to the owner of the vehicle as promptly as possible in accordance with the pre-tow and post-tow 
notice provisions as stated in this article.  

Sec. 9-308. – Removal of abandoned or junked motor vehicles from private property. 

Any abandoned motor vehicle on private property may be removed by or under the direction of a law 
enforcement officer or a code enforcement officer upon the written request of the owner, lessee, or 
occupant of the premises.  

Any abandoned or junked motor vehicle that is located on private property but is found to be a traffic 
hazard may be removed by or under the direction of a law enforcement officer or a code enforcement 
officer. 

It shall be unlawful for the registered owner or person entitled to the possession of an abandoned 
motor vehicle, or for the owner, lessee, or occupant of the real property upon which an abandoned 
motor vehicle is located to leave or allow a motor vehicle to remain on the property after the motor 
vehicle has been ordered removed. 

Sec. 9-309. – Removal and disposition at the request of the owner. 

A law enforcement officer or code enforcement officer may, with the consent of the owner of a motor 
vehicle, remove and dispose of any motor vehicle as a junked motor vehicle regardless of the value, 
condition, or age of such motor vehicle and without compliance with the notice, hearing, or sale 
procedures in this article. 

Sec. 9-310. – Pre-tow notice; exception. 

Except as provided herein, any junked or abandoned motor vehicle in violation of this article may be 
removed by towing only after a warning notice is provided. Such notice shall be affixed to the windshield 
or some other conspicuous place on the vehicle. That notice shall state that the motor vehicle will be 
removed on a specified date, no sooner than 7 days after the notice is affixed to the motor vehicle, 
unless the motor vehicle is brought into compliance by the owner or legal possessor prior to that time. 
The notice shall state the procedure the owner must follow to request a probable cause hearing before 
the towing.  

Prior notice need not be given to remove an abandoned or junked motor vehicle if a law enforcement 
officer determines that there is a special need for prompt action to eliminate obstructions to the flow of 
traffic or immediate removal is necessary to maintain and protect the public safety and welfare. 
Circumstances justifying the removal of such vehicles without prior notice include, but are not limited 
to, the following: 

99



 

Page 11 
 

(1) For vehicles left on the public streets and highways, town council determines that immediate 
removal of such vehicles may be warranted when they are:  
 

(i) obstructing traffic; 
(ii) left on the street or highway in violation of a law or ordinance prohibiting 

parking; 
(iii) parked in a “no stopping” or “no standing” zone; 
(iv) parked in a loading zone. 

 
(2) For vehicles left on town-owned property or on private property, such vehicles may be 

removed without giving prior notice only in those circumstances where the chief of police or 
code enforcement officer make written findings that there is a special need for prompt action 
to protect and maintain the public health, safety, and welfare, including, but not limited to, the 
following circumstances: 

 
(i) Vehicles blocking or obstructing ingress or egress to businesses or residences; 
(ii) Vehicles parked in such a location or manner as to pose a traffic hazard;  
(iii) Vehicles that represent an imminent threat to life or property. 

 

Sec. 9-311. – Post-towing procedures; post-tow notice. 

(a) Post-towing procedures shall be consistent with Article 7A of Chapter 20 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes. 
 

(b) Whenever a vehicle with a valid registration plate or registration number is towed, the authorizing 
person shall notify the last known registered owner of the following: 

 

(i) The description of the vehicle; 
(ii) The place from which the vehicle may be released; 
(iii) The violation with which the owner is charged; 
(iv) The procedure the owner must follow to have the vehicle returned to him or 

her; 
(v) The procedure the owner must follow to request a probable cause hearing on 

the towing.  
 

If the vehicle has a North Carolina registration plate or registration, notice shall be given to the 
owner within 24 hours; if the vehicle is not registered in North Carolina, notice shall be given to the 
owner within 72 hours. This notice shall, if feasible, be given by telephone. Whether or not the 
owner is reachable by telephone, notice shall be mailed to his or her last known address unless he 
or she, or their agent, waives this notice in writing. 
 

(c) Whenever a vehicle with neither a valid registration plate nor registration is towed as provided 
herein, the authorizing person shall make reasonable efforts, including checking the vehicle 
identification number, to determine the last known registered owner of the vehicle and to notify 
him or her of the information listed in subsection (a) above. Reasonable efforts shall be presumed 
if the requirements of the pre-tow notice have been followed. 

100



 

Page 12 
 

 
Sec. 9-312. – Hearing; probable cause hearing. 

(a) The owner or any other person entitled to claim possession of a motor vehicle towed pursuant to 
this article may request a hearing either before towing or after towing of the motor vehicle. The 
only issue at the hearing is whether or not the town can demonstrate probable cause to tow the 
motor vehicle. The town manager, or his or her designee, shall serve as the hearing officer. A 
request for hearing shall be filed with the code enforcement officer, and he or she shall set the 
hearing within 3 days of the date of the hearing request. The owner or any other person entitled to 
claim possession of the vehicle shall be notified of the time and place of the hearing, the specific 
grounds for the classification of the vehicle as an abandoned motor vehicle or junked motor 
vehicle, and the reason for removal of the vehicle. 
  

(b) The owner, the person who towed the vehicle, the person who authorized the towing, and any 
other interested parties may present evidence at the hearing. The person authorizing the towing 
and the person who towed the vehicle may submit an affidavit in lieu of appearing personally, but 
the affidavit does not preclude that person from also testifying. 

 
(c) If the hearing is pre-tow and the hearing officer finds that the town has probable cause, the motor 

vehicle will be removed and the cost for removal will become a lien on the motor vehicle. If the 
hearing officer finds that probable cause does not exist, the town will not tow the vehicle and no 
costs will be charged. 

 
(d) If the hearing is post-tow and the hearing officer finds that the town had probable cause, the lien 

for cost of removal shall remain. If the hearing officer finds that probable cause did not exist, the 
lien shall be extinguished. 

 
(e) The hearing officer shall prepare a written report within 5 days of the hearing stating his or her 

conclusions concerning whether the vehicle was in violation of this article and the reasons and 
evidence upon which the conclusion was based. The owner or any other person entitled to claim 
possession of the vehicle shall be notified of this decision by regular mail.  

 
(f) Any aggrieved party may appeal the hearing officer’s decision to the town’s board of adjustment by 

filing an appeal in writing within 15 days after the date of the report of the hearing officer, but not 
thereafter.  

 

Sec. 9-313. – Obtaining possession of a towed vehicle; payment of towing fees. 

(a) At any stage in a proceeding under this article, including before the probable cause hearing, the 
owner or other person entitled to possession may obtain possession of a vehicle that has been 
towed in accordance with this article by: 

 
(1) Paying the towing fee and costs incident to such fee; or 
(2) Posting a bond for double the amount of the towing fee. 

 
(b) The person who tows a vehicle under this article is responsible for collecting towing fees from the 

owner of that vehicle before that owner can obtain possession of the vehicle.  In addition, prior to 

101



 

Page 13 
 

obtaining possession of the towed vehicle, the owner must pay to the town an administrative fee 
of $100 as set out in section 9-106.  
 

Sec. 9-314. – Liens on towed vehicles; sale of towed vehicles. 

Liens for nonpayment of charges and fees related to the towing of vehicles under this article, and the 
sale of such vehicles in enforcement of those liens, shall be handled in accordance with Article 1 of 
Chapter 44A of the North Carolina, by the person towing vehicles under this article.  

 

ARTICLE IV - NOISE 

Sec. 9-400. – Authority and jurisdiction. 

The Town of Weaverville hereby finds that it is necessary to define, prohibit, regulate and summarily 
abate acts, omissions, or conditions that are dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or public 
safety within the Town of Weaverville. The regulations contained within this article are adopted 
pursuant to the authority granted under NCGS § 160A-193 and § 160A-174. 

Sec. 9-401. – Unlawful noise. 

It shall be unlawful to emit, or to cause or permit to be made, any unreasonably loud, annoying, 
frightening, loud and disturbing, or unnecessary noise. Specifically, it shall be unlawful to emit noise of 
such character, intensity, or duration as to be detrimental to the life or health of reasonable persons of 
ordinary sensibilities.  Factors to consider in determining whether a violation exists include, but are not 
limited to: 

(a) The volume of the noise; 
(b) The intensity of the noise; 
(c) Whether the nature of the noise is usual or unusual; 
(d) Whether the origin of the noise is natural or unnatural; 
(e) The volume and intensity of the background noise, if any; 
(f) The proximity of the noise to residential sleeping facilities; 
(g) The nature and zoning of the area within which the noise emanates; 
(h) The density of the inhabitation of the area within which the noise emanates; 
(i) The time of the day or night the noise occurs; 
(j) The duration of the noise; and  
(k) Whether the noise is recurrent, intermittent, or constant. 

 

Sec. 9-402. – Presumption in prosecution for noise violation. 

The complaints of 2 or more persons, at least one of whom resides in a different home from the other 
complaining person or persons, or the complaint of one or more persons, when combined with the 
complaint of a duly authorized investigating person, shall be prima facie evidence that such sound is a 
loud and annoying, frightening, loud and disturbing, unreasonably loud or unnecessary noise. 

 

102



 

Page 14 
 

2. It is the intention of Town Council that the sections and paragraphs of this Ordinance 
are severable and if any section or paragraph of this Ordinance shall be declared 
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid by the valid judgment or decree of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining paragraphs or sections of this Ordinance, since they would have been 
enacted by Town Council without the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such 
unconstitutional or invalid section or paragraph. 

3. These amendments shall be effective immediately upon adoption and immediately 
codified. 

 

ADOPTED THIS the 28th day of January, 2019, by a vote of __ in favor and __ against. 

 
 
__________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor  

 

ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
_________________________________________________ ______________________________________________ 
DEREK HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney  

 

 

 

 

 

103



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019   

SUBJECT: Sale of Old Bus Garage – 13 Central Avenue 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff wanted to provide an update to Town Council on where the bidding stands on the sale 
of the old bus garage property located at 13 Central Avenue.  

Since Town Council’s meeting in December 2018, the Town Clerk has held two successful 
rounds of upset bids with the most recent qualifying bid being received and opened on 
January 22, 2019. The current bid is for $345,000 and was received from Howard 
Cummings. To comply with NCGS 160A-269, this newest bid will be advertised and another 
10-day upset bid period will begin to run on January 25, 2019.   

Staff will continue to report back to Town Council on a periodic basis or when an upset bid 
period expires without the receipt of a new bid. 

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

No action is requested or required at this time. 

  

104



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  January 28, 2019   

SUBJECT: Authorization Concerning Electronic Payments 

PRESENTER:   Finance Officer 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Resolution Authorizing the Town to Engage in Electronic 
Payments 

  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town’s Finance Officer is seeking authorization from Town Council to engage in 
electronic transactions such as procurement or credit cards, debit cards, and gas cards and 
the electronic payments related to those purchases. She is also seeking authority to 
disburse Town funds by electronic funds transfer as opposed to issuing checks.  

The attached resolution provides for such authorization and directs the Finance Officer to 
develop or implement written policies concerning those practices that are consistent with 
the administrative rules concerning electronic obligations and payments.    

The Finance Officer will be at tonight’s meeting to discuss the matter and answer any 
questions that Town Council might have in this regard. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to consider adoption of the attached resolution.  

105



 

Z:\Administration\Ordinances & Resolutions\Drafts\Resolution Authorizing Electronic Payments - January 2019.docx 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE  
TO ENGAGE IN ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS AS DEFINED BY  

N.C.G.S. 159-28 OR N.C.G.S. 115C-441 
 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville that the 
Town of Weaverville is authorized to engage in electronic payments as defined by N.C. Gen. 
Stat. 159-28 or N.C. Gen. Stat. 115C-441; and  

 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Finance Officer, who is appointed by and 

serves as the pleasure of the Weaverville Town Council, to adopt a written policy outlining 
procedures for pre-auditing obligations that will be incurred by electronic payments as 
required by NC Administrative Code 20 NCAC 03.0409; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the responsibility of the Finance Officer, who is appointed by and 

serves as the pleasure of the Weaverville Town Council, to adopt procedures for disbursing 
public funds by electronic transaction as required by NC Administrative Code 20 NCAC 
03.0410;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH 
CAROLINA, ACTING THROUGH ITS COUNCIL MEMBERS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. Town Council hereby authorizes the Town of Weaverville to engage in 
electronic payments as defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. 159-28 or N.C. Gen. Stat. 115C-441; 
 
SECTION 2. Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the Finance Officer to adopt a 
written policy outlining procedures for pre-auditing obligations that will be incurred by 
electronic payments as required by NC Administrative Code 20 NCAC 03.0409;  
 
SECTION 3. Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the Finance Officer to adopt a 
written policy outlining procedures for disbursing public funds by electronic transaction as 
required by NC Administrative Code 20 NCAC 03.0410; and  
 
SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 Upon motion of _______, and seconded by ______, the foregoing resolution was passed 
by a vote of _____ in favor and  ______ opposed. 
 

ADOPTED this 28th day of January, 2019. 
 
     _____________________________________________ 
     ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

106



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  January 28, 2019 

Subject: Departmental Quarterly Report: Finance 

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments:   Quarterly Report – 2nd Quarter FY 2019 

 

Description: 

Attached please find the quarterly report, with charts summarizing Revenues and Expenditures 

as of 12/31/18. 

 

Council Action Requested: 

No action requested. 

 

 

107



 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

Ad Valorem Tax DMV Tax Utilites Tax Sales Tax Bunc Co Fire Protection ABC Store Water Revenue

Revenues

12/31/2018 12/31/2017 Budget FY19

108



 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

Governing
Body

Admin Planning Police Fire Streets Sanitation Recreation Water Admin Water
Production

Water
Maintenance

Expenditures by Department

12/31/2018 Budget FY19

109



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

REVENUE:
010-004-300-04010  PRIOR YEAR TAX REVEN 2,500.00 10011.260.00
010-004-300-04012  PRIOR YEAR INTEREST & 200.00 1000.000.00
010-004-300-04020  AD VALOREM TAX REV 3,008,164.00 262,238,613.581,806,009.33
010-004-300-04025  DMV TAX REVENUE 250,000.00 46134,020.5371,798.26
010-004-300-04030  TAX PENALTIES & INTE 4,000.00 731,092.27839.25
010-004-300-05010  UTILITIES  TAX 450,000.00 47238,792.30134,940.53
010-004-300-05040  BEER & WINE TAX 16,000.00 98330.000.00
010-004-300-05050  POWELL BILL DISTRIBU 106,000.00 1104,951.9252,475.95
010-004-300-05060  LOCAL GOVT SALES TA 1,250,000.00 47660,102.95316,711.82
010-004-300-06010  BUN CNTY FIRE PROTEC 1,387,000.00 43794,344.06373,635.23
010-004-300-06040  ABC STORE DISTRIBUTI 90,000.00 4351,162.6151,162.61
010-004-300-06045  ABC STORE - ALCOHOL 1,392.48 -1863,976.01781.38
010-004-300-06050  ABC STORE - POLICE DE 3,595.49 212,840.01558.13
010-004-300-07060  FIRE DEPT GRANTS 0.00 0455.38455.38
010-004-300-09015  CELL TOWER REVENUE 16,000.00 -316,416.3016,416.30
010-004-300-09019  STATE DISTRIBUTION - 0.00 01,328.131,328.13
010-004-300-09020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 7,500.00 563,334.571,990.09
010-004-300-09026  CONTRIBUTIONS FIRE D 0.00 0140.00100.00
010-004-300-09028  COPS FOR KIDS 29,769.05 2322,944.5020,594.50
010-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 84,000.00 3951,113.8651,033.37
010-004-300-09031  INTEREST EARNED POW 300.00 -3531,357.631,357.63
010-004-300-09040  PLANNING & ZONING FE 25,000.00 619,679.154,568.15
010-004-300-09045  FIRE INSPECTION FEES 300.00 33200.00100.00
010-004-300-09050  SALE OF PROPERTY 5,000.00 -15712,830.024,038.26
010-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 786,048.29 1000.000.00
030-004-300-08010  WATER REVENUE 1,845,000.00 48965,406.37470,470.62
030-004-300-08020  MISCELLANEOUS REVEN 17,000.00 606,716.652,256.03
030-004-300-08030  WATER TAPS 35,000.00 4618,750.004,200.00
030-004-300-08040  SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 130,000.00 2992,280.0033,480.00
030-004-300-08060  FEES FOR MSD COLLECT 50,000.00 4527,372.7613,711.20
030-004-300-09030  INTEREST EARNED 38,000.00 1000.000.00
030-004-310-09900  APPROPRIATED FUND B 144,128.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL REVENUE 3,435,012.15 5,460,562.82 9,781,897.31 44

3,435,012.15 5,460,562.82 9,781,897.31

411 GOVERNING BODY
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-411-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 78,814.00 5237,599.9417,992.28
010-410-411-18100  FICA 6,029.00 522,876.531,376.48
010-410-411-18200  RETIREMENT 4,679.00 532,220.401,046.15
010-410-411-18500  EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE P 10,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 46,700.00 3032,649.505,574.00
010-410-411-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 76236.7451.75

TONYA Page 112:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

110



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-410-411-28000  CONSERVATION BOARD 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,700.00 10024.750.00
010-410-411-32500  POSTAGE 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 8,000.00 484,166.901,922.01
010-410-411-39100  ADVERTISING 2,000.00 82351.12292.12
010-410-411-39200  NEWS LETTERS 1,600.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-39300  PRINTING 1,000.00 60400.000.00
010-410-411-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 200.00 6668.8868.88
010-410-411-39510  COMMUNITY PROMOTIO 65,500.00 5430,374.769,481.68
010-410-411-40450  INSURANCE 600.00 45329.09133.64
010-410-411-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-411-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 10,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 37,938.99 111,298.61 247,822.00 55

-247,822.00-111,298.61-37,938.99

-37,938.99 -111,298.61 -247,822.00

412 ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-412-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 317,697.00 53149,588.7269,878.12
010-410-412-18100  FICA 24,304.00 5411,138.175,236.59
010-410-412-18200  RETIREMENT 25,193.00 5311,862.475,541.40
010-410-412-18210  401-K MATCH 19,062.00 578,188.453,653.20
010-410-412-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 40,506.00 6713,332.295,897.43
010-410-412-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 7,337.00 563,247.781,548.48
010-410-412-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 64,820.00 8211,561.686,224.40
010-410-412-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 89106.45106.45
010-410-412-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 13,000.00 259,803.408,324.29
010-410-412-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 15,000.00 832,512.542,118.82
010-410-412-32100  TELEPHONE 12,765.00 486,583.944,587.29
010-410-412-32500  POSTAGE 3,000.00 272,182.98878.79
010-410-412-33100  UTILITIES 5,000.00 611,943.23753.88
010-410-412-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 20,000.00 911,728.74950.67
010-410-412-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 6,000.00 711,711.26855.63
010-410-412-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39100  ADVERTISING 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 2,000.00 83342.5070.00
010-410-412-39600  BANK SERVICE CHARGE 6,600.00 503,299.431,831.68
010-410-412-39650  BANK CARD FEES 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-412-39800  ESC REIMBURSEMENT 8,000.00 861,136.761,136.76
010-410-412-40450  INSURANCE 7,500.00 106,761.34301.69
010-410-412-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 7,000.00 642,526.742,312.84
010-410-412-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 53,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 122,208.41 249,558.87 661,284.00 62

TONYA Page 212:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

111



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-661,284.00-249,558.87-122,208.41

-122,208.41 -249,558.87 -661,284.00

413 PLANNING
EXPENDITURE:

010-410-413-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 65,670.00 5132,392.0415,671.12
010-410-413-18100  FICA 5,024.00 502,488.141,203.69
010-410-413-18200  RETIREMENT 5,208.00 512,568.681,242.71
010-410-413-18210  401-K MATCH 3,940.00 511,943.52940.26
010-410-413-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 7,237.00 543,312.081,657.80
010-410-413-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 3,000.00 74776.11658.97
010-410-413-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 500.00 75125.13100.32
010-410-413-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 1,000.00 25749.20707.24
010-410-413-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 75620.020.00
010-410-413-32100  TELEPHONE 2,170.00 59885.06645.29
010-410-413-32500  POSTAGE 3,000.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 500.00 1000.000.00
010-410-413-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 500.00 8766.4566.45
010-410-413-39100  ADVERTISING 3,000.00 91256.18106.83
010-410-413-40450  INSURANCE 500.00 18409.6518.74
010-410-413-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 23,019.42 46,592.26 106,749.00 56

-106,749.00-46,592.26-23,019.42

-23,019.42 -46,592.26 -106,749.00

431 POLICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-431-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 855,403.00 52410,765.38198,885.77
010-430-431-12500  SEPARATION ALLOWAN 44,450.42 5022,222.8510,256.70
010-430-431-18100  FICA 68,839.00 5431,363.5515,183.57
010-430-431-18200  RETIREMENT 72,709.00 5234,680.7816,715.36
010-430-431-18210  401-K MATCH 51,324.00 5721,885.1410,556.83
010-430-431-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 145,427.00 6156,911.4728,765.32
010-430-431-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 14,061.00 566,193.923,096.96
010-430-431-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 44,000.00 3727,575.1210,310.36
010-430-431-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 43,149.93 6216,605.158,841.19
010-430-431-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 6,600.00 741,703.481,131.66
010-430-431-26200  CRIME PREVENTION 2,500.00 1000.000.00
010-430-431-26250  DRUG EDUCATION & PR 38.13 1000.000.00
010-430-431-26400  ALCOHOL EDUCATION & 1,392.48 90143.630.00
010-430-431-26450  ABC LAW ENFORCEMEN 3,595.49 1000.000.00
010-430-431-26608  COPS FOR KIDS 29,769.05 2921,213.2119,844.89
010-430-431-26900  UNIFORMS 7,500.00 245,695.003,793.07

TONYA Page 312:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

112



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-430-431-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 4,500.00 333,024.332,168.81
010-430-431-32100  TELEPHONE 16,540.00 567,338.775,004.83
010-430-431-32500  POSTAGE 350.00 8553.872.66
010-430-431-33100  UTILITIES 4,800.00 591,952.61758.53
010-430-431-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 5,500.00 84865.81355.76
010-430-431-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,600.00 63974.77149.77
010-430-431-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 18,000.00 803,651.551,047.31
010-430-431-40450  INSURANCE 63,000.00 2050,637.222,371.39
010-430-431-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 74,002.08 2654,935.4814,336.38
010-430-431-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 95,000.00 3066,248.9366,248.93

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 419,826.05 846,642.02 1,675,050.58 49

-1,675,050.58-846,642.02-419,826.05

-419,826.05 -846,642.02 -1,675,050.58

434 FIRE
EXPENDITURE:

010-430-434-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 1,200,489.00 51584,550.03281,667.96
010-430-434-12110  OVERTIME 56,954.00 3735,974.0426,718.32
010-430-434-12800  RELIEF PAY 70,000.00 6028,104.0015,672.00
010-430-434-18100  FICA 101,549.00 5447,050.0823,582.17
010-430-434-18200  RETIREMENT 97,452.00 5147,955.7923,765.08
010-430-434-18210  401-K MATCH 72,029.00 6326,726.7813,727.46
010-430-434-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 209,237.00 6084,664.9742,672.47
010-430-434-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 7,031.00 563,096.961,548.48
010-430-434-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 7,700.00 474,074.553,392.48
010-430-434-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 18,000.00 1914,521.376,562.85
010-430-434-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 10,000.00 732,724.101,709.94
010-430-434-26100  MEDICAL VACINATIONS 7,500.00 791,545.001,300.00
010-430-434-26150  PREVENTATION SUPPLI 6,000.00 393,669.2429.82
010-430-434-26260  MEDICAL EQUIP & SUPP 6,000.00 691,834.571,159.81
010-430-434-26600  CONTRIBUTORY EXPEN 354.15 1000.000.00
010-430-434-26900  UNIFORMS 11,000.00 436,288.044,596.53
010-430-434-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 10,000.00 356,476.663,307.80
010-430-434-32100  TELEPHONE 20,635.00 569,051.336,080.12
010-430-434-33100  UTILITIES 15,000.00 635,516.713,383.71
010-430-434-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 15,000.00 803,021.913,017.92
010-430-434-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 20,000.00 862,899.601,744.13
010-430-434-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 30,000.00 5114,710.5913,356.83
010-430-434-39500  DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,500.00 434,838.60985.00
010-430-434-40450  INSURANCE 90,522.00 1279,697.404,040.08
010-430-434-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 54,000.00 8110,026.999,130.19

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 493,151.15 1,029,019.31 2,144,952.15 52

-2,144,952.15-1,029,019.31-493,151.15

TONYA Page 412:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

113



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-493,151.15 -1,029,019.31 -2,144,952.15

451 STREETS
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-451-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 151,557.00 5174,313.4035,630.16
010-450-451-18100  FICA 11,594.00 545,288.662,543.31
010-450-451-18200  RETIREMENT 12,018.00 515,893.062,825.51
010-450-451-18210  401-K MATCH 9,093.00 583,832.951,849.96
010-450-451-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 20,310.00 4511,166.486,189.78
010-450-451-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 5,400.00 423,119.85407.97
010-450-451-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 25,600.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-19900  CONTRACT WORK 30,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 7,000.00 592,898.951,982.50
010-450-451-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 27,000.00 6210,232.395,568.04
010-450-451-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,300.00 68745.07207.17
010-450-451-26900  UNIFORMS 1,600.00 9497.3597.35
010-450-451-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-32100  TELEPHONE 4,615.00 81864.60864.60
010-450-451-33100  UTILITIES 58,000.00 6719,241.737,939.88
010-450-451-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,200.00 411,303.90294.40
010-450-451-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 4,200.00 34,089.912,448.26
010-450-451-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 2,900.00 341,902.461,442.49
010-450-451-40450  INSURANCE 9,900.00 217,822.30148.97
010-450-451-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 2,400.00 1000.000.00
010-450-451-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 257,900.00 992,602.502,602.50
010-450-451-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 7,333.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 73,042.85 155,415.56 655,920.00 76

-655,920.00-155,415.56-73,042.85

-73,042.85 -155,415.56 -655,920.00

459 POWELL BILL
EXPENDITURE:

010-450-459-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 8,816.00 494,496.992,093.69
010-450-459-18100  FICA 674.00 51330.00153.74
010-450-459-18200  RETIREMENT 699.00 49356.62166.04
010-450-459-18210  401-K MATCH 529.00 73143.1967.14
010-450-459-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 1,422.00 72401.81199.77
010-450-459-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 4,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 1,000.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-19900  CONTRACT WORK 1,500.00 1000.000.00
010-450-459-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 100,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 2,680.38 5,728.61 118,640.00 95

-118,640.00-5,728.61-2,680.38

TONYA Page 512:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

114



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

-2,680.38 -5,728.61 -118,640.00

471 SANITATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-470-471-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 286,855.00 60115,203.4153,457.04
010-470-471-18100  FICA 21,944.00 628,303.203,882.59
010-470-471-18200  RETIREMENT 22,748.00 609,135.704,239.19
010-470-471-18210  401-K MATCH 17,211.00 714,910.632,416.84
010-470-471-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 52,613.00 6220,016.319,732.64
010-470-471-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 3,500.00 352,270.96774.24
010-470-471-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 2,000.00 79417.26351.50
010-470-471-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 31,000.00 1825,497.503,783.45
010-470-471-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 19,000.00 4510,418.716,008.49
010-470-471-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 8,500.00 106-470.82146.47
010-470-471-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 3,000.00 371,897.07616.32
010-470-471-26900  UNIFORMS 4,600.00 751,136.541,136.54
010-470-471-33100  UTILITIES 4,000.00 561,768.861,138.55
010-470-471-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,300.00 95115.00115.00
010-470-471-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 10,500.00 772,387.502,211.64
010-470-471-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 14,000.00 487,313.364,595.00
010-470-471-40100  TIPPING FEES 75,000.00 6526,256.4614,651.12
010-470-471-40450  INSURANCE 34,568.00 1828,188.521,077.48
010-470-471-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 442,814.71777.00
010-470-471-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 7,333.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 111,111.10 267,580.88 625,672.00 57

-625,672.00-267,580.88-111,111.10

-111,111.10 -267,580.88 -625,672.00

612 RECREATION
EXPENDITURE:

010-600-612-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 115,952.00 4959,696.8828,558.50
010-600-612-18100  FICA 8,870.00 504,440.472,126.49
010-600-612-18200  RETIREMENT 9,195.00 494,734.072,264.73
010-600-612-18210  401-K MATCH 6,957.00 582,952.331,423.39
010-600-612-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 10,178.00 208,141.844,066.35
010-600-612-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 1,500.00 -412,116.761,296.75
010-600-612-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 29,000.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-19900  CONTRACT WORK 9,600.00 90948.79948.79
010-600-612-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 3,000.00 641,076.99675.79
010-600-612-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 20,600.00 794,339.595,321.18
010-600-612-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 1,800.00 70538.86336.36
010-600-612-26900  UNIFORMS 1,600.00 9497.3597.35
010-600-612-33100  UTILITIES 12,500.00 624,768.412,865.50
010-600-612-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 1,200.00 9385.000.00

TONYA Page 612:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

115



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

010-600-612-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 2,400.00 251,803.35743.50
010-600-612-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,300.00 9911.2711.27
010-600-612-40450  INSURANCE 4,500.00 24,403.24131.17
010-600-612-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 59732.93300.97
010-600-612-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 610,000.00 1000.000.00
010-600-612-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 36,333.00 4519,919.420.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 51,168.09 120,807.55 888,285.00 86

-888,285.00-120,807.55-51,168.09

-51,168.09 -120,807.55 -888,285.00

711 WATER ADMINISTRATION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-711-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 131,343.00 5164,052.1330,111.56
030-700-711-18100  FICA 10,048.00 524,834.642,294.11
030-700-711-18200  RETIREMENT 10,415.00 515,079.392,387.92
030-700-711-18210  401-K MATCH 7,881.00 573,383.281,424.28
030-700-711-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 25,039.00 766,065.452,576.34
030-700-711-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 34,000.00 758,652.963,530.44
030-700-711-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 2,000.00 82360.85245.11
030-700-711-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 3,500.00 701,045.83531.11
030-700-711-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 550.00 -1931,610.001,610.00
030-700-711-26900  UNIFORMS 400.00 1000.000.00
030-700-711-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 2,500.00 88294.20246.10
030-700-711-32100  TELEPHONE 5,775.00 612,260.151,732.66
030-700-711-32500  POSTAGE 12,000.00 693,688.231,880.42
030-700-711-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 1,500.00 9827.1327.13
030-700-711-40450  INSURANCE 11,000.00 149,507.07423.50
030-700-711-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 1,800.00 9844.7944.79

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 49,065.47 110,906.10 259,751.00 57

-259,751.00-110,906.10-49,065.47

-49,065.47 -110,906.10 -259,751.00

712 PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-712-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 290,576.00 54134,690.7664,257.31
030-700-712-18100  FICA 22,229.00 5410,217.714,875.98
030-700-712-18200  RETIREMENT 23,043.00 5410,588.765,095.64
030-700-712-18210  401-K MATCH 17,435.00 832,939.591,403.24
030-700-712-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 40,837.00 5617,859.738,672.84
030-700-712-18400  RETIREE HEALTH INSUR 10,531.00 495,367.922,322.72
030-700-712-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 18,000.00 3112,399.8110,361.11
030-700-712-19600  WATER TESTING / MAIN 16,000.00 783,448.391,787.37
030-700-712-19900  CONTRACT WORK 10,000.00 564,389.503,362.50

TONYA Page 712:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

116



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-712-20000  CHEMICALS 58,000.00 6122,406.509,555.86
030-700-712-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 5,500.00 562,417.102,130.48
030-700-712-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 11,500.00 535,442.545,084.10
030-700-712-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 2,000.00 111,785.531,610.00
030-700-712-26900  UNIFORMS 2,300.00 331,545.06205.95
030-700-712-27001  LAB SUPPLIES 18,000.00 695,555.544,867.45
030-700-712-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 7,000.00 622,671.042,444.04
030-700-712-32100  TELEPHONE 5,100.00 611,974.771,391.03
030-700-712-33100  UTILITIES 98,000.00 5840,959.3819,158.57
030-700-712-34000  SLUDGE REMOVAL 30,000.00 844,864.803,062.40
030-700-712-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 65,500.00 972,040.00360.00
030-700-712-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 16,000.00 98356.9814.00
030-700-712-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 3,500.00 96136.9980.01
030-700-712-40450  INSURANCE 11,500.00 179,507.07423.50
030-700-712-40900  WATER PURCHASES 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-712-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 3,800.00 9944.7944.79
030-700-712-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 188,500.00 8332,879.5052,872.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 205,442.89 336,489.76 980,851.00 66

-980,851.00-336,489.76-205,442.89

-205,442.89 -336,489.76 -980,851.00

713 MAINTENANCE
EXPENDITURE:

030-700-713-12100  SALARIES & WAGES 304,473.00 51150,095.3972,932.39
030-700-713-18100  FICA 23,292.00 5410,723.395,227.43
030-700-713-18200  RETIREMENT 24,145.00 5111,831.225,712.24
030-700-713-18210  401-K MATCH 18,268.00 774,266.702,025.84
030-700-713-18300  HEALTH INSURANCE 45,079.00 4823,443.6413,272.41
030-700-713-19000  PROFESSIONAL SERVICE 8,000.00 355,196.852,619.71
030-700-713-19500  CONTRACT LABOR 3,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-19900  CONTRACT WORK 3,500.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-25000  VEHICLE SUPPLIES 9,900.00 564,405.223,179.63
030-700-713-26000  SUPPLIES / MATERIALS 44,000.00 5320,728.1510,222.37
030-700-713-26500  SAFETY MATERIALS 3,000.00 641,088.16443.31
030-700-713-26900  UNIFORMS 3,500.00 94194.70194.70
030-700-713-31000  TRAVEL & TRAINING 3,800.00 88470.00270.00
030-700-713-32100  TELEPHONE 6,000.00 423,485.052,062.66
030-700-713-33100  UTILITIES 31,000.00 738,279.865,114.54
030-700-713-33300  UTILITIES FOR PUMP ST 0.00 0-541.250.00
030-700-713-33500  UTILITIES/BUILDING 0.00 0127.990.00
030-700-713-35100  BUILDING REPAIR / MAI 2,800.00 90271.500.00
030-700-713-35200  EQUIPMENT MAINTENA 8,800.00 90846.230.00
030-700-713-35300  VEHICLE MAINTENANC 6,900.00 702,097.151,539.34
030-700-713-39410  EQUIPMENTAL RENTAL 1,200.00 63440.000.00
030-700-713-40450  INSURANCE 11,000.00 149,507.07423.50

TONYA Page 812:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

117



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

FY 2018-2019 10/01/2018 TO 12/31/2018
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGETED % BUDGET REM

REVENUE & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT BY DEPARTMENT

030-700-713-50100  SMALL EQUIPMENT 5,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50300  CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN 183,600.00 7742,602.5042,602.50
030-700-713-50310  REPAIRS TO RESERVOIR 6,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50320  WATER SYSTEM IMPROV 3,000.00 1000.000.00
030-700-713-50500  CAPITAL EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 167,842.57 299,559.52 799,257.00 63

-799,257.00-299,559.52-167,842.57

-167,842.57 -299,559.52 -799,257.00

910 DEBT SERVICE
EXPENDITURE:

010-910-910-91061  LOAN PAYMENT-FIRE T 53,541.00 053,540.720.00
010-910-910-91062  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE T 74,707.00 074,707.480.00
010-910-910-91063  LOAN PAYMENT - FIRE S 250,145.00 50125,627.05125,627.05
030-910-910-60030  RESERVE FOR BOND PA 204,270.00 8922,134.7022,134.70

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 147,761.75 276,009.95 582,663.00 53

-582,663.00-276,009.95-147,761.75

-147,761.75 -276,009.95 -582,663.00

999 OTHER FUNDING USES
EXPENDITURE:

010-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 20,000.00 1000.000.00
030-005-999-90000  CONTINGENCY 15,000.00 1000.000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 0.00 0.00 35,000.00 100

-35,000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 -35,000.00

TONYA Page 912:14:38PM01/24/2019
fl141r07

118



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: January 28, 2019  

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project – Staff Update 

PRESENTER: Planning Director/Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report on Extraterritorial Jurisdiction 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

As staff continues its work on the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project there are 
certain reports that staff believes might be useful for Town Council to receive prior 
to the full draft of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. One such report is on the 
topic of extraterritorial jurisdiction (see attached). The Town’s ETJ, or more 
accurately the lack of one, has been discussed within the Strategic Plan and, if re-
established, could provide some relief to the Town’s discomfort with disparity in 
development standards inside the Town versus just outside of the Town’s 
municipal limits. 

Staff is actively working on the writing of the draft Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
with the expectation that it will be ready for release for initial review in February, 
which is in line with the project schedule. Public input will be sought on the draft in 
the coming months as well.  

A full public input strategy is under development with the hope that it can be 
discussed during the joint meeting between Town Council and the Planning and 
Zoning Board on February 12th.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

No action is requested at tonight’s meeting. 

119



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Extra Territorial Jurisdiction 
Analysis 

Prepared January 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

University of North Carolina School of Government; NCGS 160A-360; Session Law 2014-26, House Bill 
531; Supreme Court of North Carolina Opinion No. 93A15-2; Watauga Democrat 

 

 

Under normal circumstances the Town of Weaverville would have the power to exercise its land use 
regulatory authority through the means of an extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) up to one mile from 
municipal borders based upon our population of fewer than 10,000. Said authority, in place since 1959, 
is granted by North Carolina General Statute 160A-360 and nearly 200 jurisdictions in the State employ 
such ETJ areas.  
 
However, the town lost its power to exercise an extra territorial jurisdiction ETJ by action of the General 
Assembly in 2014. House Bill 531 which was enacted as session law 2014-26, specifically enumerated the 
Town of Weaverville, as well as the City of Asheville, as having “no authority to exercise any power 
under this section outside its corporate limits.” Meaning, the power granted to each municipal 
jurisdiction by State Statute does not apply to the town.  
 
The Town of Boone also found itself in similar circumstances in 2014, where through separate local 
legislation, they were struck from the powers granted by NCGS 160A-360 by action of the General 
Assembly. But in July 2015, a three judge panel of the Superior Court ruled the law unconstitutional.  
Arguments related to the law commonly known as the Boone Act were heard before the Supreme Court 
which reversed the decision of the Superior Court on December 21, 2016. Justice Paul Newby wrote for 
the majority. 
 
"Because the state constitution authorizes the General Assembly to reduce the town’s jurisdictional 
reach, the removal of extraterritorial jurisdiction falls squarely within the legislature’s general power as 
described in the first clause of Article VII, Section 1. The decision of the three-judge panel finding the Act 
unconstitutional is reversed." 
 
With the Supreme Court finding the act of the General Assembly constitutional in the Boone Act the 
only avenue forward, if a political will exists to examine the reinstating of these powers granted by 
statute, is additional special legislation removing language related to the prohibition of the Town of 
Weaverville from exercising an ETJ from NCGS 160A-360.  
 
 

 
• Of the 552 jurisdictions in the State of North Carolina eligible to exercise an ETJ, only the City of 

Asheville and the Towns of Boone and Weaverville have been exempted from this authority 
 
 
 

120



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, January 23, 2019 

Subject: Planning Department Report for the Fourth Quarter of 2018 
and Calendar Year End 

Presenter:   Planning Director 

Attachments: Planning Department Report – Q4 2018 and Year End 

Description: 

Attached you will find a report reflective of permits issued in October, November and 
December 2018 as well as a 2018 calendar year end report.  

Action Requested: 

None 

 

121



 

Planning Department Report – Q4, 2018 
 

Total Zoning Permits Issued: 29 
 
Residential: 
Single family dwellings: 18 Internal upfit or accessory structure: 9  
Multifamily dwellings: 0 
 
Commercial: 
New Commercial: 0  Internal upfit or accessory structure: 2  
 
Sign Permits: 1 

 
Planning and Zoning Board Activity: 
 
October: The Board considered a final plat for the major subdivision at 44 Central; text amendment 
for conditional zoning districts; and a text amendment for the Northridge Commons Townhouses 
conditional zoning district. 
 
November: The Board considered information related to an update of the comprehensive land use 
plan. 
 
December: The Board considered a preliminary and final plat for the minor subdivision at 8 Hickory; 
text amendment related to the permitting process and additional standards for multifamily residential 
development; information related to an update of the comprehensive land use plan  
 

 
Zoning Board of Adjustment Activity: 
 
October: The Board considered an application for a variance related to the setbacks established by the 
R-1 zoning district on the property commonly known as 30 North College. The Board found in favor of 
the application. 

 
 

 
 

122



 

2018 Zoning Permit Applications 
 
 

Zoning Permits:  Total: 123 
 
   Single Family, New Construction: 51 
   Single Family, Addition or Upfit: 48 
   Multifamily, New Construction: 1 (176 Units on Garrison Branch Road) 
 
   Commercial, New Construction: 1 (Fairfield Inn) 
   Commercial, Addition or Upfit: 22  
 

 
2017: Residential, 102; Commercial, 18; Total, 120 
2016: Residential, 79; Commercial, 8; Total, 87 
2015: Residential, 27; Commercial, 4; Total, 31 
2014: Residential, 49; Commercial, 4; Total, 53 (with ETJ)  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

123


	November 13 2018 Town Council Special Called Mtg Minutes
	December 11 2018 Town Council Workshop Minutes
	December 17 2018 -Town Council Meeting Minutes
	December 21 2018 -Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes
	Tax Release and Refund - January 2019
	Approval of Employment Agreement for Town Attorney - January 2019
	Budget Amendment - Police Dept 1-28-19
	Set PH for Multifamily Development Text Amendment
	Setting Public Hearing for Text Amendment Related to R-12.pdf
	Code Amendment - Multi-Family Residential Dwellings - January 2018 - recommended by PZ.pdf

	Budget Calendar Agenda Item
	Agenda Item Summary-FY 2019-2020 Budget Calendar
	FY20 Budget Calendar

	TM Report Jan 2019
	Greenways Project Update
	Agenda Item -Fireworks Update
	Agenda Item Summary-Fireworks Update
	Weaverville Primary School Fireworks staging 2019
	Budget Amendment Form - Fire Blankets 1-28-19

	Agenda Item-Community Center Project 1-28-2019
	Agenda Item-Community Center Design
	2019-01-23_Weaverville-CC_SD SET-mm
	Sheets
	A0.01 - COVER SHEET
	A1.01 - PROPOSED SITE PLAN
	A2.01 - FLOOR PLAN
	A4.01 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	A4.02 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	Weaverville CC-Indoor Pickle Ball -Design Implications-2019-01-23

	Amendments to Personnel Policy - Art VI - January 2019
	Annexation Petition for Barkley Terrace Subdivision on Wheeler Road - January 2019
	Wheeler Road Annexation Staff Report.pdf
	Wheeler Road Staff Report - Admin
	RE_ Wheeler Road Annexation
	Wheeler Road Staff Report - FD
	Wheeler Road Staff Report - PD


	Code Amendments - Nuisances - January 2019
	Sale of Old Bus Garage Property - January 2019
	Authorization Concerning Electronic Payments - January 2019
	Finance Quarterly Report 12-31-18
	Quarterly Report -charts 12-31-18.pdf
	Chart1

	Quarterly Report -charts 2 12-31-18.pdf
	Chart2


	Planning Staff Report
	Planning Department Report - Q4, 2018 and Year End.pdf
	Zoning Permit Report - Q4, 2018.pdf
	Zoning Permit Report - 2018.pdf

	Monthly Tax Report for 1-22-19.pdf
	Sheet1 (2)




